

From the President

At Augusta University, approximately 9,000 students are taught, mentored, challenged and inspired by a world-class faculty – prestigious scientists, clinicians, scholars and artists drawn to our campuses from around the globe. The university is comprised of 10 colleges and schools and offers an honors program, study abroad opportunities, and the Center for Undergraduate Research Scholarship. As the state's only academic medical center, Augusta University houses the Medical College of Georgia, the state's only public medical school, and The Dental College of Georgia, the state's only dental school. Ensuring our large and diverse campus remains safe for our students, workforce, patients and visitors is a responsibility shared by all members of the Augusta University community.

Thank you for your interest in our Annual Fire Safety and Security Report. This report is published annually and accessible at the following link: https://www.augusta.edu/police/cleryandcrime/clery.php This report, including the statistics provided, is also published in compliance with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act ("Clery Act").

The report outlines our commitment to victims of crimes, the many services we offer, how to report, Campus Security Authorities and security policies and procedures for our community. It will also provide helpful crime prevention tips and key contact information.

At Augusta University, we are proud to foster a safe and healthy environment to learn, work and visit, but we need your help to ensure that continues.

Sincerely

Brooks A. Keel, Ph.D.

President

Table of Contents

Annual Safety and Security Report	1
Preparation of the Annual Safety and Security Report and Disclosure of Crime Statistics	1
About the Augusta University Police Department	1
Reporting to the Augusta University Police Department	
Emergency Phone Numbers	3
Timely Warning Reports – Crime Alerts	
Emergency Response and Evacuation Procedures	
Emergency Notification	5
Procedures Used to Notify the Campus Community	
Procedures for Disseminating Emergency Information to the Greater Community	
Enrolling in the University's Emergency Notification System	6
Campus Security Policies, Crime Prevention and Safety Awareness Programs	7
Crime Prevention and Safety Awareness Programs	
Emergency Response Actions	7
Sexual Assault, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence and Stalking	9
Reporting Sexual Assault, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence and Stalking	
Responding to Sexual Assault, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence and Stalking	
Disciplinary Sanctions/Outcomes	
Procedures for Employee Investigations	
Sexual Misconduct Prevention, Education and Awareness Programs	
Sex Offender Registration – Campus Sex Crimes Prevention Act	18
Policies Governing Alcohol and Other Drugs	20
Annual Fire Safety Report	22
Fire Statistics and Fire Log	
Procedures for Evacuation of Campus Housing	
Fire Safety Education and Training Programs	24
CRIME STATISTICS	25
Definitions of Reportable Crimes	25
Geographic Definitions	26
Annual Disclosure of Crime Statistics	27

Annual Safety and Security Report

Preparation of the Annual Safety and Security Report and Disclosure of Crime Statistics

The offices of Augusta University Police, Audit, Compliance and Enterprise Risk Management, and Student Affairs, along with the Augusta University Clery Compliance Committee have prepared this report to comply with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security and Crime Statistics Act. Crime and disciplinary statistics were collected using information maintained by the Augusta University Police Department, Student Affairs, Residence Life, the Title IX Coordinator and Campus Security Authorities, as well as information provided by local law enforcement agencies surrounding the main campus. Each of these offices provides updated policy information and crime data.

This report provides statistics for the previous three years concerning reported crimes that occurred on campus, in certain off-campus buildings or property owned, leased or controlled by Augusta University. This report also includes institutional policies concerning campus security, such as policies regarding sexual assault, alcohol and other drugs.

Augusta University distributes a notice of the availability of this Annual Fire Safety and Security Report by October 1 of each year to every member of the Augusta University community. Anyone, including prospective students and employees, may obtain a paper copy of this report by contacting the Augusta University Police Department at 706-721-8119 or electronically by visiting the following: https://www.augusta.edu/police/cleryandcrime/clery.php.

The Annual Safety and Security Report is compiled and prepared by the Augusta University Clery Act Compliance Committee. The committee is chaired by the Clery Act Compliance Officers. The committee includes representatives from:

Augusta University Police
Augusta University Fire Safety Office
Compliance, Ethics and Risk Management
Office of the Dean of Students
Office of Legal Affairs
Human Resources
Residence Life and Housing
Critical Events Preparedness and Response (CEPaR)
Campus Security Authorities

About the Augusta University Police Department



The Public Safety Division was established in 1973 to provide professional law enforcement and occupational safety programs for the Augusta University. Today, the department is a multi-divisional organization. In 2013, Augusta State University and Georgia Health Sciences University merged to form Georgia Regents University. Both Universities' Police

departments were also consolidated. In 2016, Georgia Regents University was renamed Augusta University. The division was re-organized in 2018 to Augusta University Police Department. The Police Department reports to the Office of the Executive Vice President for Finance and Administration, and maintains jurisdiction on all Augusta University property.

The men and women of the Police Department are dedicated to service excellence through partnerships that reduce crime, create a safe and secure community environment in which Augusta University may achieve its mission of education, research, and patient care.

The Division is committed to delivering quality service to our community in an effective, responsive and professional manner. The Police Department provides leadership, security, enforcement, and many other services to meet the needs of the Augusta University Community.

Mission Statement

The mission of the Augusta University Police Department is to promote a safe atmosphere in which the university's teaching, discovery, clinical care and service mission can be successful. This is accomplished through traditional and progressive law enforcement practices and strong community partnership.

Core Values The Augusta University Police Department strives to adhere to the highest standards of self service in our community and ascribe to Augusta University Core Values.

INTEGRITY

Recognizing that integrity is the foundation of our profession, we endeavor to preserve and protect the public trust placed in us by adhering to the highest standards of honesty, moral and ethical practice. We will be beyond reproach in all that we do.

RESPECT

We believe in treating all people with respect and dignity. We show concern and empathy for the victims of crime and treat violators of the law with fairness, dignity and respect. By demonstrating respect for others, we will earn respect for the members of the Augusta University Police Department. Further, all team members are encouraged to submit ideas and suggestions to improve operational efficiency for the department and the community we serve.

PROFESSIONALISM

Professionalism is the primary component that guides us in the performance of our duties and manifests itself in our public service. We will serve as role models for the community by projecting a positive image with a spirit of cooperation and teamwork.

EXCELLENCE

We are committed to and pride ourselves in our personal and organizational excellence. We are committed to achieving a level of performance that exceeds all expectations so that we may maintain the community's confidence and satisfaction with our services

Role, Authority and Training

The Augusta University Police Department protects and serves the Augusta University community 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. The Department is responsible for a number of campus safety and security programs including Community Safety and Security Education, physical security, and special event management.

The Augusta University Police Department is an accredited police department and has Police Officers with full arrest powers, certified by Georgia Peace Officers Standards and Training Council, whose sole duties are campus law enforcement and safety. The Police Department has jurisdiction to enforce local, state, and federal laws on campus and within a 500 yards radius of the campus boundaries.

Augusta University Police Department encourages individuals who witness or suspect criminal activity to report them promptly and accurately. Augusta University encourages this pro-reporting environment through distributed crime prevention material as well as through new employee/student orientation.

The Department is comprised of:

- · Police Officers
- Communication/Service Officers
- Administrative Support Personnel

The police officers at Augusta University:

- Have completed a training course required of all certified peace officers in the State of Georgia
- Receive a minimum of 20 hours per year of in-service and specialized training in various law enforcement topics.
- All officers are certified by the Peace Officers Standards and Training Council of Georgia ("P.O.S.T.").

Under O.C.G.A. 20-3-72, Augusta University Police Officers have the power to make arrests for offenses committed upon any property under the jurisdiction of the board of regents and for offenses committed upon any public or private property within 500 yards of any property under the jurisdiction of the board.

All suspected criminal incidents are investigated by the Augusta University Police Department. All crimes that occur on campus or Augusta University property shall be reported to Augusta University Police Department.

Augusta University Medical Center Security Officers

Augusta University Medical Center also employs security officers who are dedicated to providing professional security services and personal safety to patients, visitors, and staff. These officers provide customer service on demand through way-finding, escorts, and investigations of activities that may be considered criminal in nature. Security officers are trained to assist staff securing and, if necessary, restraining unruly patients. Security officers also recover found property, assist in recovery of lost property, and perform locking and unlocking duties.

Security works in close association with several local law enforcement agencies, including Augusta University Police Department, the Department of Corrections, Social Services, and clinical staff. As a 24/7 Security Department, they may be contacted at 706-721-2911.

Crimes Involving Student Organizations at Off-Campus Locations Augusta University does not have any off campus housing of officially recognized student organizations.

Law Enforcement Authority

The Augusta University Police Department has a mutual aid agreement with the Richmond County Sheriff's Office for emergency situations and does not have a MOU pertaining to the investigation of criminal incidents on campus. The Augusta University Police Department works closely with the Federal Bureau of Investigation, Georgia Bureau of Investigation, and other state and local law enforcement agencies regarding incidents that occur within their jurisdictions. The Richmond County Sheriff's Office and Veterans Affairs Police share information regarding crime statistics and other crime prevention information with the Augusta University Police Department, the Augusta University College of Nursing and Augusta University. The Augusta University-University of Georgia Medical Partnership campus is located in Athens. Law enforcement response is provided by the Augusta University Police Department, the University of Georgia Police Department, and the Athens-Clarke County Police Department. The University of Georgia Police Department provides primary law enforcement services for these facilities on a daily basis. The UGA Police Department has full arrest powers, and are certified by the Peace Officers Standards and Training Council, whose sole duties are campus law enforcement and safety, with jurisdiction to enforce local, state and federal laws on campus.

Reporting to the Augusta University Police Department

Augusta University has a number of ways for campus community members and visitors to report crimes, serious incidents, and other emergencies to appropriate Augusta University officials. Regardless of how and where you decide to report these incidents, it is critical for the safety of the entire Augusta University community that you immediately report all emergencies to Augusta University Police 706-721-2911 to ensure an effective investigation and appropriate follow-up actions, including issuing a Crime Alert or emergency notification.

Voluntary and Confidential Reporting

If crimes are never reported, little can be done to help other members of the community from also being victims. We encourage Augusta University community members to report crimes promptly and to participate in and support crime prevention efforts. The Augusta University community will be much safer when all community members participate in safety and security initiatives.

If you are the victim of a crime or want to report a crime you are aware of, but do not want to pursue action within the Augusta University or criminal justice system, we ask that you consider filing a voluntary, confidential report. Depending upon the circumstances of the crime you are reporting, you may be able file a report while maintaining your confidentiality. The purpose of a confidential report is to comply with your wish to keep your personally identifying information confidential, while taking steps to ensure your safety and the safety of others. The confidential reports allow the Augusta University to compile accurate records on the number and types of incidents occurring on campus. Reports filed in this manner are counted and disclosed in the Annual Security and Fire Safety Report. In limited circumstances, Augusta University may not be able to assure confidentiality and will inform you in those cases. Anyone may call Augusta University Police at 706-721-2911 to report concerning information. Callers may remain anonymous.

It's Up To Each of Us

Augusta University takes great pride in the community and offers students, facility and staff many advantages. This community is a great place to live, learn, work and study, however, this does not mean that the campus community is immune from all of the other unfortunate circumstances that arise in other communities. With that in mind, Augusta University has taken progressive measures to create and maintain a safe environment on campus.

Crime prevention tips and information are available on the Augusta University Police Department's website at: https://www.augusta.edu/police/resources/index.php.

While Augusta University strives to be progressive with its policies, programs, and education, it is up to each one of us to live with a sense of awareness and use reasonable judgment when living, working or visiting on campus.

We encourage all members of the Augusta University community to report all crimes and other emergencies to Augusta University Police in a timely manner. Augusta University Police has a dispatch center that is available by phone at 706-721-2911 or in person twenty-four hours a day at the Annex II Building, 524 15th Street, Augusta, GA 30912. Though there are many resources available, Augusta University Police should be notified of any crime, whether or not an investigation continues, to assure the Department can assess

any and all security concerns and inform the community if there is a significant threat to the Augusta University community.

Emergency Phones

There are **34** emergency phones and **22** "Code Blue" call boxes located at or near campus buildings and parking decks that dial directly to the Augusta University Police dispatcher. There are **51** emergency phones and **6** "Code Blue" call boxes located at or near the Augusta University Medical Center buildings and parking decks that dial directly to the Augusta University Police Dispatch Center. When an emergency phone or call box is picked up or activated, the appropriate dispatcher is immediately notified of the location of the caller.



Additionally, Augusta University Police instituted "RAVE Guardian", for the Augusta University Health Sciences and Summerville Campuses. This is a cell phone application that provides functionality for 911 calls, as these calls are received at Augusta University Police Dispatch. The users enter their information into the Smart911 database that RAVE supplies, and when a call is received via the RAVE method, it will immediately alert Police Dispatch with an audible alarm, displaying the user's information, and their location (should they have location services enabled). Augusta University Police Dispatch will then handle the call as they would any emergency call.

The Augusta University Police Dispatch monitors the RAVE portal 24 hours a day, 7 day a week. Information on downloading the application for both iPhone and Android devices can be found at:

$\underline{https://www.augusta.edu/police/resources/raveguardian.php}$

Where to Report

Persons wishing to report crimes anonymously to an agency other than the Augusta University Police Department can do so by any of the following:

Official	Campus Address	Phone Number
Augusta University Police	Annex II, 524 15th Street, Augusta, GA 30912	706-721-2911
Vice President for Enrollment & Student Affairs	Summerville Campus 2500 Walton Way, Bellevue Hall 101 Augusta, GA 30904	706-737-1411
Vice President for Human Resources	Annex I, 1120 15 th Street Augusta, GA 309012 1515 Pope Avenue Augusta, GA 30912	706-721-3770
Office of the Dean of Student Life	2500 Walton Way, Bellevue Hall 101, Augusta, GA 30904	706-737-1411
Office of Legal Affairs	Health Sciences Campus Kelly Administration, AA-2007, 1120 15 th Street, Augusta, GA 30912	706-721-4018
The Office of Housing & Residence Life	6000 Jaguar Way, Augusta, GA, 30909	706-729-2300
Compliance Hotline	Compliance and Risk Management Department	800-576-6625
Title IX Coordinator	1499 Walton Way HS 3509 Augusta, Georgia 30912	706-721-0901

Campus Security Authorities (CSA'S)

Even though Augusta University has a police department on campus, a victim of a crime may wish to report it to someone other than the campus police. Consequently, the Clery Act requires all institutions to collect crime reports from a variety of individuals and organizations that Clery considers to be "Campus Security Authorities." Campus Security Authorities are responsible for forwarding non-identifying information to Augusta University Police for inclusion in the annual security report, regardless of whether or not the victim chooses to file a report with law enforcement or press charges.

The Clery Act recognizes certain Augusta University officials and offices as "Campus Security Authorities (CSA)." The Act defines these individuals as "officials of an institution who has significant responsibility for student and campus activities, including, but not limited to, student housing, student discipline and campus judicial proceedings.

Individuals at Augusta University who have official responsibilities and functions that involve relationships with students or who have significant interactions with students or Augusta University activities may be considered CSAs. In addition to our Augusta University Police Officers, CSA's include but are not limited to the following:

- Professional staff in Student Affairs including: Deans, Associate Deans, Director of Student Housing, Resident Advisors, Dean of Student Life, Student Health and Wellness and campus staff members involved with student discipline, etc.)
- · Staff in student activities office
- Faculty or staff advisors to student organizations
- · Coaches and Assistant Coaches
- Director and Assistant Director of Athletics
- · Security officers, and others

Pastoral and Professional Counselors

According to the Clery Act, pastoral and professional counselors who are appropriately credentialed and hired by Augusta University to serve in a counseling role <u>are not</u> considered Campus Security Authorities when they are acting in the counseling role. As a matter of policy, Augusta University encourages pastoral and professional counselors to notify those whom they are counseling of the voluntary, confidential reporting options available to them.

Timely Warning Reports - Crime Alerts

The Augusta University Police Department is responsible for issuing timely warnings to the Augusta University community. In the event of a crime, which may pose an ongoing or serious threat to members of the Augusta University community, JAG ALERTS and/or email stating "Timely Warning", is sent to all students and employees on campus. The decision to issue a Timely Warning is on a case-by-case basis, depending on the circumstances of the incident, severity of the crime and whether or not there's an ongoing safety and security issue. The alerts are generally written by the Chief of the Police or a designee, and they are approved and distributed to the community by the Augusta University Department of Communications and Marketing. Timely Warnings are typically issued for the following categories: criminal homicide, sex offenses, robbery, aggravated assault, burglary, motor vehicle theft and major incidents of arson. Cases of aggravated sexual assault and sex offenses are considered on a case-by-case basis, depending on the facts and information available to Augusta University Police. For example, if an assault occurs between two students who have a disagreement, there may be no on-going threat to other Augusta University community members and a Timely Warning would not be distributed. In cases involving sexual assault, they are often reported long

after the incident occurred, thus there is no ability to distribute a "timely" warning notice to the community. Sex offenses will be considered on a case-by-case basis depending on when and where the incident occurred, when it was reported and the amount of information known by the Augusta University Police Department.

The Augusta University Chief of Police or designee reviews all reports to determine if there is an on-going threat to the community and if the distribution of a Timely Warning is warranted. Timely Warnings may also be posted for other crime classifications or locations, as deemed necessary.

Updates to the Augusta University community about any particular case resulting in a Timely Warning may be distributed via JAG ALERTS and may be posted on the Augusta Police Department University website https://www.augusta.edu/police/cleryandcrime/. Timely Warning posters may be used by the Augusta University Police Department in campus buildings when deemed necessary. The Office of Critical Event Preparedness and Response (CEPaR) maintains the mass-notification system for Augusta University, called Augusta University ALERTS. This system includes outdoor sirens and the capability to e-mail, SMS (Text) message, and telephone up to ten numbers for all staff, faculty and students in the Augusta University.

The best education in the world is useless if a student doesn't survive with a healthy mind and body.

- Connie and Howard Clery

The murder of Jeanne Clery occurred in 1986, in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania at Lehigh University. Clery, who was a student at the time of her death, was killed in her

campus dormitory. Clery's parents, who believed the University had failed to share vital information with its students regarding campus safety, campaigned for legislative reform for several years following their daughter's death. Their sustained efforts ultimately resulted in the passage of the Clery Act, a federal law requiring all universities and colleges receiving federal student financial aid programs to report crime statistics, alert campus of imminent dangers, and distribute an Annual Campus Security Report to current and prospective students and employees.

Emergency Response and Evacuation Procedures

Emergency Management at Augusta University

In the dynamic 21stCentury all hazards culture, the Office of Critical Event Preparedness and Response (CEPaR) maintains the adaptability to provide resources and ensure community preparedness without regard to circumstances. Safety, education, and engagement of our students, patients, faculty, and staff are our top priorities, always. CEPaR provides to Augusta University and the Augusta University Medical Center response capability, recovery efforts, mitigation strategies, accreditation support and fosters a preparedness culture. The Office of Critical Event Preparedness and Response (CEPaR) is the emergency management office for the Augusta University and AU Health. CEPaR's mission is: "provide leadership, support, and training to reduce the disruption of service, loss of life and property by developing response, recovery, mitigation, and preparation strategies for Augusta University and AU Health System through a comprehensive, risk-based emergency preparedness platform."

Drills, Exercises and Training

Members of the Augusta University Police Department meet with Student Affairs representatives and the Resident Assistants on a periodic basis to discuss Personal, Residential, and Workplace Safety. Members also meet with the students of each residence hall on an annual basis to discuss Crime Prevention and Safety Issues. The Augusta University Office of Student Affairs assists students in gaining access to professional counseling. The Augusta University Police Department provides information for employees at New Employee Orientation. Human Resources conducts Annual Safety Update training. Employees receive safety training at the time of hire and annually. Students are briefed each semester. Security awareness and crime prevention programs on personal safety are sponsored by various departments at Augusta University throughout the year. University Police facilitate programs for students, faculty, staff, orientations, organizations and residential housing. Residence Life and other offices under the Division of Student Affairs offer programs for students specifically. Crime Prevention and Security Awareness Programs available include:

- Crime Prevention presentations covering basic crime prevention, personal safety, as well as office safety.
- RAD Rape Aggression Defense (R.A.D.) is a comprehensive course that begins with awareness, prevention, risk reduction and avoidance while progressing on to the basics of hands-on defense training. Certified RAD instructors teach all RAD classes.
- · Safety Escort Service--The Augusta University Police Department provides an escort service to students, staff, and campus visitors 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.
- · As part of the security awareness programs, students and employees are encouraged to be responsible for their own security and the security of others.

To ensure the Augusta University's emergency management plans remain current and actionable, Augusta University will conduct an emergency management exercise, at a minimum once yearly. These exercises may include tabletop drills, emergency operations center exercises, or full-scale emergency response exercises. Augusta University conducts after-action reviews of all emergency management exercises.

In conjunction with at least one emergency management exercise each year, the Augusta University will notify the community of the exercise and remind the community of the publicly available information regarding emergency response procedures found at the website of Critical Event Preparedness and Response (CEPaR):

https://www.augusta.edu/cepar/index.php

Emergency Notification

The Augusta University has an Emergency Operations Plan that is coordinated and updated by the Critical Event Preparedness and Response (CEPaR) Office. The plan includes a massnotification system called JAG ALERTS. The system has the capability to e-mail, SMS (Text) message, and telephone up to ten numbers for all staff, faculty and students in the Augusta University enterprise. The system can deliver the message to all available contacts in a timely manner. The plan outlines the use and activation of the system as well as direction for the content of the message. The plan identifies the system for discovery or reporting of issues, the process for deciding to activate the plan for an emergency, and lists for pertinent staff to be called for emergency teams. The plan outlines the testing of the notification system. AU communicates with surrounding neighbors and institutions prior to scheduled tests and during real activations. All building evacuation plans are tested annually using unannounced fire drills. Staff, faculty and students in the Augusta University enterprise can check personal information used for Jag ALERTS at:

https://www.augusta.edu/cepar/alert.php.

Procedures Used to Notify the Campus Community

In the event of a situation that poses an immediate threat to members of the campus community, the University has various systems in place for communicating information quickly. Some or all of these methods of communication may be activated in the event of emergency notification to all or a segment of campus community. The Jag ALERTS system may be used to communicate official information during an emergency or crisis situation that disrupts normal campus operation or threatens the immediate health or safety of the campus community. The Augusta University Police Department receives information from various offices/departments on campus, such as the CEPaR Office. The system includes the capability to e-mail, SMS (Text) message, and telephone up to ten numbers for all staff, faculty and students in the Augusta University enterprise. These systems are used to immediately notify the campus community that a dangerous situation or emergency exists involving an immediate threat to the health or safety of students or staff on campus and when immediate action is required by the recipient. If the Augusta University Police Department confirms with the assistance of key campus administrators, local first responders or the National Weather Service that there is an emergency or dangerous situation that poses an immediate threat to the health or safety of some or all members of the Augusta University community an appropriate message will be disseminated. The mass notification system at Augusta University is an opt out system. All personnel are encouraged to review their personal information annually to ensure message receipt.

Determining the Appropriate Segment or Segments of the Campus Community to Receive an Emergency Notification

Augusta University and/or local first responders on the scene of a critical incident or dangerous situation will assist those preparing the emergency notification with determining what segment or segments of the Augusta University community should receive the notification. Generally, campus community members in the immediate area of the dangerous situation (i.e. the building, adjacent buildings, or surrounding area) will

receive the emergency notification first. Augusta University may issue subsequent notifications to a wider group of community members. In addition to the emergency notification that may be issued via the JAG ALERTS system, Augusta University will also post applicable messages about the dangerous condition(s) on the Augusta University homepage http://www.augusta.edu/ to ensure the rest of the campus is aware of the situation and the steps they should take to maintain personal and campus safety. If the emergency affects a significant portion of the entire campus, Augusta University officials will distribute the notification to the entire campus community.

Determining the Contents of the Emergency Notification

The office responsible for issuing the emergency notification (usually Augusta University Police Department or CEPaR) will, in concert with Augusta University and local first responders, determine the contents of the notification. Augusta University has developed a wide range of template messages addressing several different emergency situations. The individual authorizing the alert will select the template message most appropriate to the on-going situation and modify it to address the specifics of the present incident. In those cases where there are no pre-determined template messages in the system, the individual authorizing the alert will develop the most succinct message to convey the appropriate information to the community. The goal is to ensure individuals are aware of the situation and that they know the steps to take to safeguard their personal and community safety.

Procedures for Disseminating Emergency Information to the Greater Community

If an incident occurs that might create an imminent threat to members of the Augusta-Richmond County community, systems are in place to communicate that information. Such systems include correspondence with local news media outlets and emergency personnel, which shall be used to inform the Augusta-Richmond County community.

Enrolling in the University's Emergency Notification System

To register into JAG ALERTS students, faculty and staff can log in to JAG ALERTS at: https://www.augusta.edu/cepar/alert.php select the appropriate icon to review your contact information, make updates, and add additional phone numbers as desired. Adding your cell phone number or other contacts where you can most quickly and easily be reached is especially important. Local community members interested in receiving notification information regarding emergencies on campus can obtain this information through local news media and campus website.

Security of and Access to University Facilities

At Augusta University, administrative buildings are open from 6:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and academic buildings generally are open from 7:00 a.m. until 11:00 p.m. Academic buildings are scheduled to be open on weekends only as needed. Access to individual classrooms and laboratories is limited to those enrolled in the courses meeting there. Likewise, access to most programs is limited to those enrolled in the program or otherwise authorized access.

Many cultural and athletic events held in the University facilities are open to the public. Other facilities such as the bookstore, library, and performance center are likewise open to the public. Only those who have demonstrated a need are issued keys or card access to a building.

Special Considerations for Residence Hall Access

At the Augusta University campus, access is given to residence halls either by a key or a computerized Access Control and Security Monitoring System. Identification cards are coded so that only students who are residents in a particular hall are authorized electronic access entry to that hall; the system

denies entry to all unauthorized persons. When any exterior door is left ajar an audible alarm is activated. Officers are responsible for checking and securing doors, when needed. When a door is malfunctioning, Facilities Management personnel are notified for repair(s). Always remember to lock your doors and windows. All residence halls and apartment exterior doors are equipped with locks and with crash bars to ensure a quick emergency exit.

Only residents and their invited guests are permitted in the living areas of the residence halls. It is the resident's responsibility to ensure that his/her guest is aware of the University and residence hall policies. Guests are not provided with room keys or door access cards. All exterior doors are locked from 5 PM to 8 AM, Monday to Friday, locked 24 hours on weekends and holidays. It is the responsibility of residents and staff members to challenge or report individuals who cannot be identified as residents or the guests of residents.

When the Augusta University Police Department receives a report of an unescorted person in a residence hall, a police officer is dispatched to identify that person. During the summer when groups who are not regularly associated with Augusta University are using the University residence halls, exterior doors are locked 24 hours a day. Each guest is issued an identification card that allows him or her to gain access to their assigned building via the electronic access control system. Residence Halls are staffed 24 hours per day. Officers from the Augusta University Police Department also conduct regular checks of residence hall areas.

Security Considerations for the Maintenance of Campus Facilities

Augusta University is committed to campus safety and security. At Augusta University, locks, landscaping and outdoor lighting are designed for safety and security. Sidewalks are designed to provide well-traveled, lighted routes from parking areas to buildings and from building to building. Sidewalks and building entrances are illuminated to provide well-traveled, lighted routes from parking areas to buildings and from building to building.

Augusta University Police Department regularly patrols the campus and reports malfunctioning lights and other unsafe conditions to Facilities Management for corrections and repair. Augusta University Police Department, in conjunction with representatives from the Environmental Health and Safety and Facilities Management conducts an annual survey of Augusta University property to evaluate campus lighting.

We encourage community members to promptly report any security concern, including concerns about locking mechanism, lighting, or landscaping to the Augusta University Police Department.

Campus Security Policies, Crime Prevention and Safety Awareness Programs

In addition to the many programs offered by the University Police and other University offices, the University has established a number of policies and procedures related to ensuring a reasonably safe campus community. These policies include:

Weapons Policy

In accordance with legislation that became effective July 1, 2017, Augusta University has adopted, in accord with the University System of Georgia Board of Regents, guidance on the rules regarding weapons on campus. Please see link below. https://www.augusta.edu/police/resources/hb280.php

Crime Prevention and Safety Awareness Programs

In an effort to promote safety awareness, the Augusta University Police Department maintains a strong working relationship with the community. This relationship includes offering a variety of safety and security programs and services and crime prevention programming. If you or your organization would like additional information about specific programs, please contact the Augusta University Police Department Community Services Division at 706-721-2914. Below are some of the programs and services available:

Security Prevention and Crime Prevention Programs

Security awareness and crime prevention programs on personal safety conducted by Augusta University Police include:

- Crime Prevention Lectures Power Point presentation covering basic crime prevention, personal safety, as well as office safety.
- RAD Rape Aggression Defense (R.A.D.) is a comprehensive course that begins with awareness, prevention, risk reduction and avoidance while progressing on to the basics of hands-on defense training. Certified RAD instructors teach all RAD Classes.
- Safety Escort Service University Police provides an escort service to students, staff, and campus visitors 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.

Personal Safety

Theft, disorderly conduct, and alcohol related offenses are very common on university campuses. However, they don't standalone. Despite law enforcement's efforts, serious crimes do occur on campuses. It is important to report any suspicious incidents to police and always remain alert and vigilant.

One of the more serious crimes that too often is unreported is Sexual Assault. It is important to know what these crimes are, because in many cases, victims do not realize that have been victimized. Additionally, crimes of this nature are very difficult for victims to report for a number of very complex reasons. We provide the following information to assist those help who may have been victims of sexual assault or who have a friend who has been sexually assaulted.

There are many guidelines to help you be more alert and aware of the situation to prevent such serious crimes, such as:

Know your surroundings

- · Be alert
- Call for help
- Report any suspicious people and/or activity, immediately

Emergency Response Actions

Missing Student Notification Protocol

Augusta University (AU) takes seriously the safety and welfare of students. This protocol, in compliance with Sec. 488 of the Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008, establishes a framework for cooperation among members of the University community in locating and assisting students who are reported missing.

Any Student, faculty or staff who receives information that a student may be missing should report immediately the known information to the AU Department of Public Safety. If someone is reported missing and he/she is deemed to be a student, the Department of Public Safety, the Office of the Dean of Student Life, and Housing and Residence Life (in the event the missing student lives in University- operated residences) will

coordinate efforts to locate the student. The following protocol may be used to locate a student who is reportedly missing:

- 1. A staff member will call the missing student's mobile telephone (if listed).
- 2. A text message will be sent, if applicable, requesting the student respond letting University officials know the student is safe:
- 3. If the student is a "resident student" a staff member will check the student's room and speak with his/her roommates or others in the residence hall that may have knowledge of the student's whereabouts. This may require a staff member to complete a door audit to see when the student last used their ID to gain access to their residence, and/or key into the room to conduct a health and safety inspection;
- 4. Consult with faculty and staff to determine the last time the student was in class or made contact;
- 5. Determine the last time the student's ID was scanned at campus facilities, residence halls, library, and/or other locations, and check security recordings if necessary;
- 6. Check social networking sites to determine if the student has been communicating about his/her whereabouts;
- 7. Attempt to locate the student's vehicle on campus;
- 8. Contact area hospitals and law enforcement for possible information;
- 9. If the whereabouts of the student are still unknown, the Dean of Student Life will work with the Augusta University Police Department to contact the person listed as an emergency contact or if a "residential student" to contact the appropriate person listed by the student.
- 10. If contact cannot be made with the person listed as an emergency contact, the University may contact the student's parent(s), guardian(s), and/or another designated emergency contact unless a "Student Directory Privacy Request" is on file.
- 11. If the whereabouts of the student are still unknown, Augusta University Police Department will coordinate with local law enforcement and continue to investigate using established police procedures. Any new information will be provided to appropriate staff in the Division of Student Affairs, including Housing and Residence Life (if applicable).
- 12. A University-wide e-mail alert including the missing student's photograph may be sent to all faculty, staff, and students, if it is deemed necessary by the Department of Public Safety and the Division of Enrollment and Student Affairs.

If any of these steps provide an opportunity to speak with the missing student, verification of the student's state of health and intention of returning to campus should be made. A referral, if needed, may be made to the University's Department of Student Counseling and Psychological Services, Student Health Services, or other medical agency. Once the student is found, the Department of Public Safety will be contacted to notify them of the student's state of health and well-being.

Fire

When the fire alarm is activated, evacuation is mandatory. Evacuate the building immediately. Do not use the elevators. Take personal belongings with you (keys, purses, wallets, etc.) Proceed to you designated RALLY POINT. Follow directions given by your building's emergency coordinator, fire department or the police. Help those needing assistance to move from the area. Do not re-enter the building until authorized to do so by emergency personnel.

Armed Intruder

In case of an immediate life-threatening event, each individual should take whatever actions are necessary to protect his or her own life. If it is possible to flee the area safely and avoid danger, do so. If flight is impossible, lock and barricade all doors, turn off all lights and silence all electronic devices. If you are in a classroom: STAY THERE, secure the door, Notify AU POLICE: (706) 721-2911 or 911, lock, wedge, or barricade the door. Consider quietly exiting a ground floor window, if safe. If you can't exit a window, stay away from the door, stay low and be quiet. The shooter may bang on the door and yell for help to entice you to open the door. If police are not on the scene yet, move well away from the incident, find a safe cover position, and wait for police to arrive. When instructed to exit, proceed to the safest exit to leave the building and then move toward any police vehicle. Keep your hands on your head and follow the exact directions from the police. Move away from the immediate path of danger. Distance yourself from the shooter. Put something between you and the shooter. Thinking and planning about a shooter on campus NOW, will help you make better decisions during a critical incident.

Hostage Situation

Stay calm, appear submissive, and do not make eye contact. Don't be a hero. Follow instructions of captor. Let them be incharge. Cooperate; be friendly if possible; don't argue with or antagonize captor or other hostages. Inform captors of medical or other needs. Speak in a calm even tone. Give an appearance of calmness so everyone will feel more at ease. Be prepared to wait; elapsed time is a good sign. Don't try to escape; don't try to resolve situation by force. Be observant and remember everything that is seen or heard. If a rescue takes place, lie on the floor, face down, and await instructions from rescuers.

Shelter in Place

Employees, students, and visitors may be asked to shelter in place when it is unsafe to be outside due to a campus

emergency, chemical spill, active shooter or ongoing incident in another location. University Police and/or University Administration will advise when to shelter in place. All students, visitors, employees must stay in current location or area designated by University Authorities. If away from your regular area, seek the nearest building, office or classroom. Secure the door if possible. Stay in place until given the all clear.

Tornado/Severe Weather

Monitor local Television and radio stations, NOAA weather radio, weather related Internet sites, etc. Be prepared to take shelter on the lowest level of your building. Stay away from windows. Move to an interior hallway. Wait for an all-clear notification prior to returning to your work area or classroom. If outdoors, lie in a ditch, low-lying area, or crouch near a strong building if shelter is not available or if there is no time to get indoors.

Responding to Sexual Assault, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence and Stalking

Policy Statement

AU is committed to reducing incidents of Sexual Misconduct, providing prevention tools, conducting ongoing awareness and prevention programming, and training the campus community in accordance with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act ("Clery Act") and the Violence Against Women Act ("VAWA"). Prevention programming and training will promote positive and healthy behaviors and educate the campus community on consent, sexual assault, sexual harassment, alcohol and drug use, dating violence, domestic violence, stalking, bystander intervention, and reporting.

When Sexual Misconduct does occur, all members of the AU community are strongly encouraged to report it promptly through the procedures outlined in this Policy. The purpose of this Policy is to ensure uniformity throughout AU in reporting and addressing sexual misconduct. This Policy applies to all members of the AU community. This Policy is not intended to infringe or restrict rights guaranteed by the United States Constitution including free speech under the First Amendment, or the due process clauses of Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments.

Definitions and Prohibited Conduct for Students and Employees

Community: Students, faculty, and staff, as well as contractors, vendors, visitors, patients and guests.

Complainant: An individual who is alleged to have experienced conduct that violates the Sexual Misconduct Policy

Consent: Words or actions that show a knowing and voluntary willingness to engage in mutually agreed-upon sexual activity. Consent cannot be gained by force, intimidation or coercion; by ignoring or acting in spite of objections of another; or by taking advantage of the incapacitation of another where the respondent knows or reasonably should have known of such incapacitation.

Minors under the age of 16 cannot legally consent under Georgia law. Consent is also absent when the activity in question exceeds the scope of consent previously given. Past consent does not imply present or future consent. Silence or an absence of resistance does not imply consent. Either party can withdraw consent at any time by using clear words or actions.

Dating Violence: Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the alleged victim. The existence of such relationship shall be determined based on the totality of the circumstances including, without limitation to: (1) the length of the relationship; (2) the type of relationship; and (3) the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship. Dating violence includes, but is not limited to, sexual or physical abuse or the threat of such abuse. Dating violence does not include acts covered under the definition of Domestic Violence.

Domestic Violence: Violence committed by a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the alleged victim; by a person with whom the alleged victim shares a child in common; by a person who is cohabitating with, or has cohabitated with, the victim as a spouse or intimate partner, or

by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the alleged victim.

Incapacitation: The physical and/or mental inability to make informed, rational judgments. It can result from mental disability, sleep, involuntary physical restraint, status as a minor under the age of 16, or from intentional or unintentional taking of alcohol and/or other drugs. Whether someone is incapacitated is to be judged from the perspective of an objectively reasonable person.

Nonconsensual Sexual Contact: Any physical contact with another person of a sexual nature without the person's consent. It includes but is not limited to touching (or penetrating) of a person's intimate parts (such as genitalia, groin, breasts, or buttocks); touching (or penetrating) a person with one's own intimate parts; or forcing a person to touch his or her own or another person's intimate parts. This provision also includes "Fondling" as defined by the Clery Act.

Nonconsensual Sexual Penetration: Any penetration of the vagina, anus, or mouth by a penis, object, tongue, finger, or other body part; or contact between the mouth of one person and the genitals or anus of another person. This provision also includes "Rape, Incest, and Statutory Rape" as defined by the Clery Act.

Confidential Employees: Institution employees who have been designated by the Institution to talk with a complainant or respondent in confidence. Confidential Employees must only report that the incident occurred and provide date, time, location, and name of alleged respondent (if known) without revealing any information that would personally identify the alleged victim. This minimal reporting must be submitted in compliance with Title IX and the Clery Act. Confidential Employees may be required to fully disclose details of an incident in order to ensure campus safety. Student Counseling and Psychological Services provide confidential support services and the contact information is the following: Phone: 706-737-1471 and website:

https://www.augusta.edu/counseling/

Privileged Employees: Individuals employed by the institution to whom a complainant or alleged victim may talk in confidence, as provided by law. Disclosure to these employees will not automatically trigger an investigation against the complainant's or alleged victim's wishes. Privileged Employees include those providing counseling, advocacy, health, mental health, or sexual assault related services (e.g., sexual assault resource centers, campus health centers, pastoral counselors, and campus mental health centers) or as otherwise provided by applicable law. Exceptions to confidentiality exist where the conduct involves suspected abuse of a minor (in Georgia, under the age of 18) or otherwise provided by law, such as imminent threat of serious harm.

Reasonable Person: An individual who is objectively reasonable under similar circumstances and with similar identities to the person being evaluated by the institution.

Reporter: An individual who reports an allegation of conduct that may violate this Policy but who is not a party to the complaint.

Respondent: An individual who is alleged to have engaged in conduct that violates the Sexual Misconduct Policy.

Responsible Employees: Those employees who must promptly and fully report complaints of or information regarding sexual misconduct to the Coordinator. Responsible Employees include any administrator, supervisor, faculty

member, or other person in a position of authority who is not a Confidential Employee or Privileged Employee. Student employees who serve in a supervisory, advisory, or managerial role are in a position of authority for purposes of this Policy (e.g., teaching assistants, residential assistants, student managers, orientation leaders).

Sexual Exploitation: Taking non-consensual or abusive sexual advantage of another for one's own advantage or benefit, or for the benefit or advantage of anyone other than the one being exploited.

Examples of sexual exploitation may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Invasion of sexual privacy;
- Prostituting another individual;
- Non-consensual photos, video, or audio of sexual activity;
- Non-consensual distribution of photo, video, or audio of sexual
 - activity, even if the sexual activity was consensual;
- Intentional observation of nonconsenting individuals who are partially undressed, naked, or engaged in sexual acts;
- Knowingly transmitting an STD or HIV to another individual through sexual activity;
- Intentionally and inappropriately exposing one's breasts, buttocks, groin, or genitals in nonconsensual circumstances; and/or
- Sexually-based bullying.

Sexual Harassment (Student on Student): Unwelcome verbal, nonverbal, or physical conduct based on sex (including gender stereotypes), determined by a Reasonable Person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to participate in or to benefit from an institutional education program or activity in violation of Title IX.

Sexual Harassment (Other than Student on Student): Unwelcome verbal, nonverbal, or physical conduct, based on sex (including gender stereotypes) that may be any of the following:

- Implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of employment or status in a course, program, or activity;
- A basis for employment or educational decisions; or
- Is sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive to interfere with one's work or educational performance creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work or learning environment, or interfering with or limiting one's ability to participate in or to benefit from an institutional program or activity.

Sexual Misconduct: Includes, but is not limited to, such unwanted behavior as dating violence, domestic violence, nonconsensual sexual contact, nonconsensual sexual penetration, sexual exploitation, sexual harassment and stalking.

Stalking: Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to fear for their safety or the safety of others or suffer substantial emotional distress.

For the purposes of this definition:

1. Course of conduct means two or more acts, including, but not limited to, acts in which the stalker directly, indirectly, or through third parties, by any action, method, device, or means, follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or

communicates to or about a person, or interferes with person's property.

- 2. Substantial emotional distress means significant mental suffering or anguish that may but does not necessarily, require medical or other professional treatment or counseling.
- 3. AU also prohibits unwelcome conduct determined by a Reasonable Person to be so severe, pervasive and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to an AU education program or activity in violation of Title IX.

Retaliation: Anyone who has made a report or complaint, provided information, assisted, participated or refused to participate in any manner in the Sexual Misconduct Process, shall not be subjected to retaliation. Anyone who believes that they have been subjected to retaliation should immediately contact the Coordinator or their designee. Any person found to have engaged in retaliation in violation of this Policy shall be subject to disciplinary action.

Amnesty: Individuals should be encouraged to come forward and to report Sexual Misconduct notwithstanding their choice to consume alcohol or to use drugs. Information reported by a student during an investigation concerning the consumption of drugs or alcohol will not be used against the particular student in a disciplinary proceeding or voluntarily reported to law enforcement; however, students may be provided with resources on drug and alcohol counseling and/or education, as appropriate. Nevertheless, these students may be required to meet with staff members in regards to the incident and may be required to participate in appropriate educational program(s). The required participation in an educational program under this amnesty procedure will not be considered a sanction. Nothing in this amnesty provision shall prevent an institution staff member who is otherwise obligated by law (the Clery Act) to report information or statistical data as required.

False Complaints: Individuals are prohibited from knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information to a system or institution official. Any person found to have knowingly submitted false complaints, accusations, or statements, including during a hearing, in violation of this Policy shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action (up to and including suspension or expulsion) and adjudicated under the appropriate institutional process.

Reporting Sexual Misconduct, Dating Violence, Domestic Violence and Stalking

Institutional Reports: An institutional report occurs when the institution has notice of a complaint. That notice occurs in two instances:

- 1. When a Responsible Employee receives a complaint; or
- 2. When the Title IX Coordinator or their designee receives a complaint.

Any individual may make a report, but the institution does not have notice of the report until information is known to a Responsible Employee or the Title IX Coordinator. The report may be made directly to the Coordinator in multiple formats to include: writing, email, phone, letter, fax, interview, or other method that provides the basis of the complaint of sexual misconduct. There is no specific information required to constitute a report; however, the report should contain as much information as can be provided. To submit an incident report, options for resolution, support services and more;

Online Report Form: http://www.augusta.edu/prevention/ Title IX Coordinator- Michele Reed Phone: (706) 721-0901 or 706-755-5462

Office Location: 1499 Walton Way, Annex I, HS 3509

Email: micreed@augusta.edu

Complainants, or anyone with knowledge of Sexual Misconduct, may file a report with a Responsible Employee or the Coordinator. That Responsible Employee must provide a complete reporting of all information known to them to the Coordinator. Responsible Employees informed about Sexual Misconduct allegations should not attempt to resolve the situation, but must notify and report all relevant information to the Coordinator as soon as practicable.

Upon receipt of an institutional report, the Coordinator will contact the Complainant. The Coordinator will discuss the availability of supportive measures, the invitation to the Complainant to discuss their wishes with respect to implementation of supportive measures, and explain the process of filing a complaint. An institutional report does not automatically prompt an investigation.

The Coordinator shall notify the System Director of any allegation(s) of Sexual Misconduct that could, standing alone as reported, lead to the suspension or expulsion of the Respondent(s). The System Director will work with the institution to determine whether any support services or interim measure(s) are necessary and to assign an investigator who will work under the direction of the System Director or designee, if directed by System Director. If an allegation is not initially identified as one that would lead to the suspension or expulsion of the Respondent(s), but facts arise during the course of the investigation that could lead to the Respondent's suspension or expulsion, the Title IX Coordinator shall notify the System Director or designee. The System Director shall have the discretion oversee the handling of the complaint.

Confidential Reports: Confidential Employees or Privileged Employees may receive reports of Sexual based Misconduct without the requirement to report that information to the Coordinator, except as dictated by law or professional standards. Upon request by the Complainant, Confidential Employees and Privileged Employees may make a report to the Coordinator within the degree of specificity dictated by the Complainant. Nothing in this provision shall prevent an institution staff member who is otherwise obligated by law (i.e., the Clery Act) to report information or statistical data as required.

Confidential Reporting Options Students:

Online Support:

https://www.augusta.edu/counseling/crisis.php

Call: 706-737-1471

Summerville Campus, CE-2A/Health Sciences Campus, DA 2014

Mon-Fri, 8am-5:00pm/Afterhours call 1-800-715-4225

Whether the incident involves sexual assault, dating or domestic violence, or stalking, it's important to preserve evidence should you decide to pursue criminal charges. As time passes, evidence is more difficult to collect and preserve.

The following evidence and information should be gathered and preserved:

- Clothing worn during the incident including undergarments
- If clothing has been removed, place it in a paper bag
- Do not wash, clean, use the bathroom, or change clothing prior to a medical exam
- Collect and store sheets, bedding, and condoms, if used

- If there are physical injuries, such as scarring, blood or bruising, this should be documented through photographic means via camera or cell phone
- Document a lists of witnesses with contact information
- Text messages, call history, social media posts
- If it is a stalking situation, make sure you collect and save any forms of communication, via notes, text messages, voice messages, e-mail, or any other electronic means
- · Secure pictures of injuries; and/or videos

Law Enforcement Reports: Because Sexual Misconduct may constitute criminal activity; a Complainant also has the option, should the Complainant so choose, of filing a report with campus or local police, for the Complainant's own protection and that of the surrounding community. The institution may assist the Complainant in reporting the situation to law enforcement officials. Filing a criminal report does not automatically constitute an institutional report.

Augusta University is committed to protecting victims from any further harm. If a victim/complainant requests information on how to obtain a Temporary Protection Order (TPO), the Augusta University Police provides the following assistance:

- For victim assistance the victim is given information on SafeHomes of Augusta, who will assist with obtaining a TPO.
- SafeHomes provides a 24-Hour Crisis Hotline (706-736-2499), shelter, legal assistance, counseling and education
- To obtain a TPO in Richmond County the victim must file with Superior Court. For additional information contact the Superior Court Clerk's Office at 706-821-2465.

Augusta University Police Department Reporting:

Physical Location: 524 15th Street Augusta, Georgia 30901 Phone: 706-721-2911

https://www.augusta.edu/police/onlinereport.php

Anonymous Reports: AU provides a mechanism by which individuals can report incidents of alleged Sexual Misconduct anonymously. Individuals should understand, however, that it will be more difficult for the institution to respond and to take action upon anonymous reports.

Online Anonymous Report Form:

http://www.augusta.edu/prevention/

Complaint Consolidation: AU may consolidate complaints as to allegations of Sexual Misconduct against more than one Respondent, by more than one Complainant against one or more Respondents, or cross-complaints between parties, where the allegations of sexual misconduct arise out of the same facts or circumstances. Parties shall have the opportunity to request or object to the consolidation; however, the institution shall have the authority to make the final determination. For the purpose of this Policy, consolidation may occur during the investigation and/or the adjudication phases of the sexual misconduct process.

Complaint Dismissal: AU is permitted, but not required, to dismiss complaints on the following grounds:

- 1. The alleged conduct, even if proved, would not constitute sexual misconduct:
- 2. The Complainant notifies the Coordinator in writing that they would like to withdraw the complaint;
- 3. The Respondent is no longer enrolled or employed by the institution; or

4. There are circumstances that prevent the institution from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination regarding the complaint.

The parties shall receive simultaneous written notice of the dismissal and the reason(s) for the dismissal. The parties shall have a right to appeal the institution's decision to dismiss the complaint

It is critical for the safety of the entire Augusta University community that cases of sexual assault are reported immediately so that effect and timely investigations can be completed with appropriate follow-up including issuing a Crime Alert or emergency notification if necessary. A report may be filed anonymously, although anonymous reports may make it difficult for the institution to address the complaint. All reports of sexual misconduct alleged to have been committed by a non-student or non-employee will be addressed and/or resolved through the applicable Augusta University's and Board of Regents' policy and procedure for appropriate and applicable next steps.

Reporting Protocol:

Initial Evaluation of Sexual Misconduct Reports: Upon notice of the alleged Sexual Misconduct the institution's Title IX Coordinator ("Coordinator") will assess whether a formal investigation, informal resolution, or dismissal would be appropriate. In making this determination, the Coordinator will assess whether the allegation(s), if true, would rise to the level of prohibited conduct, whether a Formal Complaint must be filed, whether an investigation is appropriate in light of the circumstances, whether the parties prefer an informal resolution, and whether any safety concerns exist for the campus community. The need to issue a broader warning

Interim Measures:

Interim measures may be implemented at any point after the institution becomes aware of an allegation of Sexual Misconduct and should be designed to protect any student or other individual in the USG community. Such measures are designed to restore or preserve equal access to the education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or the recipient's educational environment, or deter Sexual Misconduct and retaliation. Interim measures must be implemented consistent with the provisions in applicable Board and institutional policies and procedures. An interim suspension should only occur where necessary to promote safety and should be limited to those situations where the Respondent poses a serious and immediate danger or threat to persons or property. In making such an assessment, the institution should consider the existence of a significant risk to the health or safety of the Complainant or the campus community; the nature, duration, and severity of the risk; the probability of potential injury; and whether less restrictive means can be used to significantly mitigate the risk. Before an interim suspension is issued, the institution must make reasonable efforts to give the Respondent the opportunity to be heard on whether the Respondent's presence on campus poses a danger. If an interim suspension is issued, the terms of the interim suspension take effect immediately. The Respondent shall receive notice of the interim suspension and the opportunity to respond to the interim suspension. Within three business days of receiving a challenge the institution will determine whether the interim suspension should continue.

Responding to Sexual Misconduct, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence and Stalking

Support Services:

Once the Title IX Coordinator has received information regarding an allegation of Sexual Misconduct, the parties will be provided written information about support services. Support services are non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, and without charge that are made available to the Complainant and Respondent before or after the filing of a complaint or where no complaint has been filed. Support services include counseling, advocacy, housing assistance, academic support, disability services, health and mental services, and other services, available at the student's institution. Available support services are also listed on the institution's Title IX website.

Whether an event happens on or off campus, there are numerous available resources for victims at Augusta University. Below is a list of some of the resources available:

- Augusta University Student Counseling and Psychological Services - Summerville Campus, Central Utilities Plant Building - 706-737-1471
- Augusta University Student Health Services -1040 AF Building - 706-721-3448
- Augusta University Police Health Sciences Campus, Annex II - 524 15th St. - 706-721-2911
- Augusta University Office of the Dean of Students -Bellevue Hall - 706-737-1411
- Augusta University Title IX Coordinator Ms. Michele Reed - FI Building - 706-721-0900
- Rape Crisis and Sexual Assault Services 706-724-5200 (24 hour hotline)
- Rape, Abuse and Incest National Network 1-800-656-HOPE (24 hour hotline)
- Safe Homes of Augusta Domestic Violence Intervention - 706-736-2499 (24 hour hotline)

Interim Measures:

Interim measures may be implemented at any point after AU becomes aware of an allegation of sexual misconduct and should be designed to protect any student or other individual in the AU community. Such measures are designed to restore or preserve equal access to the education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or the campus community, or deter Sexual Misconduct and retaliation. Interim measures will be provided consistent with the provisions in applicable Board and institutional policies and procedures.

Emergency Removal:

Emergency removal will only occur where necessary to maintain safety and should be limited to those situations where the Respondent poses a serious and immediate danger or threat to persons or property. In making such an assessment, the institution should consider the existence of a significant risk to the health or safety of the Complainant or the campus community; the nature, duration, and severity of the risk; the probability of potential injury; and whether less restrictive means can be used to significantly mitigate the risk.

Jurisdiction:

AU will take necessary and appropriate action to protect the safety and well being of its community. Sexual misconduct allegedly committed is addressed by this Policy when the misconduct occurs on institution property, or at institution-sponsored or affiliated events, or off-campus, as defined by other Board or institution student conduct policies.

Advisors

Both the Complainant and the Respondent, as parties to the

matter, shall have the opportunity to use an advisor (who may or may not be an attorney) of the party's choosing at the party's own expense. The advisor may accompany the party to all meetings and may provide advice and counsel to their respective party throughout the Sexual Misconduct process, including providing questions, suggestions and guidance to the party, but may not actively participate in the process except as outlined in BOR Policy 6.7.4 (D). All communication during the Sexual Misconduct process will be between the institution and the party and not the advisor. With the party's permission, the advisor may be copied on all communications.

Informal Resolutions

Allegations of Sexual Misconduct may be resolved informally. The Complainant, the Respondent, and the institution must agree to engage in the informal resolution process and to the terms of the informal resolution. The Complainant(s) and the Respondent(s) have the option to end informal resolution discussions and request a formal process at any time before the terms of an informal resolution are reached. However, matters resolved informally shall not be appealable.

Timeframe:

Efforts will be made to complete the investigation and resolution within 120 business days. Temporary delays and limited extensions may be granted by AU for good cause throughout the investigation and resolution process. The parties will be informed in writing of any extension or delay and the applicable reason. The institution shall keep the parties informed of the status of the investigation.

Responding to Reports of Sexual Harassment Pursuant to

Title IX

Implementing Title IX regulations require special handling of complaints of sexual harassment, as defined in the regulations and listed below. The following section outlines the required specialized handling of these matters that may differ from an institution's handling of Sexual Misconduct, as defined in this Policy. Unless expressly mentioned in this section, other provisions of this Policy shall apply to all alleged Sexual Misconduct.

Other Title IX sex-discrimination allegations are handled pursuant to other applicable Board and/or institutional policies.

Definition of Sexual Harassment:

Under Title IX sexual harassment means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following:

- (1) An employee conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the institution on an individual's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct
- (2) Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the institution's education program or activity; or
- (3) Sexual assault" as defined by the Clery Act and "dating violence," "domestic violence," and "stalking" as defined by the VAWA Amendments.

Jurisdiction:

Title IX addresses alleged misconduct when the misconduct occurs against a person in the United States on institution property, or at institution-sponsored or affiliated events where the institution exercises substantial control over both the Respondent and the context, or in buildings owned or controlled by a student organization that is officially recognized by the institution.

Formal Complaints:

A formal Complaint is a written document filed by the Complainant or signed by the Coordinator alleging sexual

harassment, as defined by Title IX and its implementing regulations, against a Respondent and requesting that the institution open an investigation. In order to file a Formal Complaint, the Complainant must be participating in or attempting to participate in the education program or activity of the institution occurring within the United States at the time of the filing.

Informal Resolution:

Formal Complaints may be resolved informally, except in the instance of an allegation by a student against an institution employee. The following must be met in order to proceed with the informal resolution process:

- 1. The parties have received written notice of the allegations
- 2. The parties have received written explanation of the informal process to include, but not limited to:
- a. Written agreement of the parties to initiate the informal resolution process;
- b. Written notice that the parties may withdraw from the process at any time prior to the agreement of the terms of the resolution:
- c. Written notice that the final resolution precludes any further institutional actions on the allegations
- 3. The institution has agreed to engage in the informal resolution process

Advisors:

Both the Complainant and the Respondent, as parties to the matter, shall have the opportunity to use an advisor (who may or may not be an attorney) of the party's choosing. The advisor may accompany the party to all meetings and may provide advice and counsel to their respective party throughout the Sexual Misconduct process but may not actively participate in the process except to conduct cross-examination at the hearing. If a party chooses not to use an advisor during the investigation, the institution will provide an advisor for the purpose of conducting cross-examination on behalf of the relevant party.

All communication during the Sexual Misconduct process will be between the institution and the party and not the advisor. The institution will copy the party's advisor prior to the finalization of the investigation report when the institution provides the parties the right to inspect and review directly related information gathered during the investigation. With the party's permission, the advisor may be copied on all communications.

Process for Investigating and Resolving Sexual Misconduct Reports

Investigation: Throughout any investigation and resolution proceeding, a party shall receive written notice of the alleged Sexual Misconduct, shall be provided an opportunity to respond, and shall be allowed the right to remain silent or otherwise not participate in or during the investigation and resolution process without an adverse inference resulting. If a party chooses to remain silent or otherwise not participate in the investigation or resolution process, the investigation and resolution process may still proceed, and policy violations may result. Until a final determination of responsibility, the Respondent is presumed to have not violated the Sexual Misconduct Policy. Prior to the finalization of the investigation report, timely and equal access to information directly related to the allegations that has been gathered during the investigation and may be used at the hearing will be provided to the Complaint, the Respondent, and a party's advisor (where applicable). Formal judicial rules of evidence do not apply to the investigation process; additionally the standard of review throughout the Sexual Misconduct process is a preponderance of the evidence.

- 1. The parties shall be provided with written notice of the: report/allegations with sufficient details, pending investigation, possible charges, possible sanctions, available support services and interim measures, and other rights under applicable institutional policies. For the purposes of this provision, sufficient details include the identities of the parties involved, if known, the conduct allegedly constituting Sexual Misconduct, and the date and location of the alleged incident, if known. This information will be supplemented as necessary with relevant evidence collected during the investigation. The notice should also include the identity of any investigator(s) involved. Notice should be provided via institution email to the party's institution email.
- 2. Upon receipt of the written notice, the parties shall have at least three business days to respond in writing. In that response, the Respondent shall have the right to admit or deny the allegations, and to set forth a defense with facts, witnesses, and supporting materials. A Complainant shall have the right to respond to and supplement the notice. Throughout the Sexual Misconduct process, the Complainant and the Respondent shall have the right to present witnesses and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence.
- 3. If the Respondent admits responsibility, the process may proceed to the sanctioning phase or may be informally resolved, if appropriate.
- 4. An investigator shall conduct a thorough investigation and should retain written notes and/or obtain written or recorded statements from each interview. The investigator shall also keep a record of any party's proffered witnesses not interviewed, along with a brief, written explanation of why the witnesses were not interviewed.
- 5. An investigator shall not access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party's records made or maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, psychologist, or other recognized professional made in connection with the party's treatment unless the party has provided voluntary written consent. This also applies to information protected by recognized legal privilege.
- 6. The initial investigation report shall be provided to the Complainant, the Respondent, and a party's advisor (if applicable). This report should fairly summarize the relevant evidence gathered during the investigation and clearly indicate any resulting charges or alternatively, a determination of no charges. For purposes of this Policy, a charge is not a finding of responsibility.
- 7. The Complainant and the Respondent shall have at least 10 calendar days to review and respond in writing to the initial investigation report and directly related information gathered during the investigation. The investigator will review the Complainant's and the Respondent's written responses, if any, to determine whether further investigation or changes to the investigation report are necessary.
- 8. The final investigation report should be provided to the Complainant, the Respondent, and a party's advisor, if applicable, at least 10 calendar days prior to the Hearing. The final investigation report should also be provided to all Hearing Panel members for consideration during the adjudication process.

Resolution/Hearing

The Respondent and the Complainant, as parties to the matter, may have the option of selecting informal resolution as a possible resolution in certain cases where the parties agree, and it is deemed appropriate by the institution. Where a case is not resolved through informal resolution the case shall be set for a hearing. All sexual misconduct cases shall be heard by a panel of faculty and/or staff. All institutional participants in the sexual misconduct resolution process shall receive appropriate annual training as directed by the System Director or Coordinator and required by the Clery Act and Title IX.

In no case shall a hearing to resolve a sexual misconduct allegation take place before the investigation report has been finalized. The investigator may testify as a witness regarding the investigation and findings but shall otherwise have no part in the hearing process and shall not attempt to otherwise influence the proceedings outside of providing testimony during the hearing. All directly related evidence shall be available at the hearing for the parties and their advisors to reference during the hearing.

Relevant facts or evidence that were not known or knowable to the parties prior to the issuance of the final investigative report shall be admissible during the hearing. The institution will determine how the facts or evidence will be introduced. The admissibility of any facts or evidence known or knowable by the parties prior to the issuance of the final investigative report, and which were not submitted during the investigation, shall be determined by the institution in compliance with the obligation to provide both parties an equal opportunity to present and respond to witnesses and other evidence.

Notice of the date, time, and location of the hearing as well as the selected hearing panel members shall be provided to the Complainant and the Respondent at least 10 calendar days prior to the hearing. Notice shall be provided via institution email to the parties' institution email. Parties may attend the hearing with their advisor.

Hearings shall be conducted in-person or via video conferencing technology. Where the institution determines that a party or witness is unable to be present in person due to extenuating circumstances, the institution may establish special procedures to permit that individual to provide testimony from a separate location. In doing so, the institution must determine whether there is a valid basis for the individual's unavailability, require that the individual properly sequester in a manner that ensures testimony has not been tainted, and make a determination that such arrangement will not unfairly disadvantage any party. Should it be reasonably believed that the individual presented tainted testimony, the hearing panel will disregard or discount the testimony. Parties may also request to provide testimony in a separate room from the opposing party, so long as no party is unfairly disadvantaged, and they have the opportunity to view the testimony remotely and submit follow-up questions.

At all times participants in the hearing process, including parties, a party's advisor, and institution officials, are expected to act in a manner that promotes dignity and decorum throughout the hearing. Participants are expected to be temperate, respectful to others, and follow procedural formalities outlined by this Policy and the institution. The institution reserves the right to remove any participant from the hearing environment if the participate refuses to adhere to established rules of decorum.

Each institution shall maintain documentation of the investigation and resolution process, which may include written findings of fact, transcripts, audio recordings, and/or video recordings. Any documentation shall be maintained for seven years.

Additionally, the following standards will apply to Title IX and Non-Title IX Sexual Misconduct hearings respectively:

Title IX Hearings

Where a party or a witness is unavailable, unable, or otherwise unwilling to participate in the hearing, including being subject to cross-examination, the hearing panel shall not rely on statements of that party or witness in reaching its determination regarding responsibility. The hearing panel shall not draw an adverse inference against the party or witness based solely on their absence from the hearing or refusal to subject to cross-examination.

The parties shall have the right to present witnesses and evidence at the hearing.

The parties shall have the right to confront any witness, including the other party, by having their advisor ask relevant questions directly to the witness. The Hearing Officer shall limit questions raised by the advisor when they are irrelevant to determining the veracity of the allegations against the Respondent(s). In any such event, the Hearing Officer shall err on the side of permitting all the raised questions and must document the reason for not permitting any particular questions to be raised.

Questions and evidence about the Complainant's sexual predisposition or prior sexual behavior, shall be deemed irrelevant, unless such questions and evidence are offered to prove that someone other than the Respondent committed the alleged conduct or consent between the parties during the alleged incident.

The hearing panel shall not access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party's records made or maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, psychologist, or other recognized professional made in connection with the party's treatment unless the party has provided voluntary written consent. This also applies to information protected by recognized legal privilege.

Formal civil rules of evidence do not apply to the resolution process and the standard of evidence shall be a preponderance of the evidence.

Following a hearing, the parties shall be simultaneously provided a written decision via institution email of the hearing outcome and any resulting sanctions or administrative actions. The decision must include the allegations, procedural steps taken through the investigation and resolution process, findings of facts supporting the determination(s), determination(s) regarding responsibility, and the rationale for any sanction or other administrative action. The decision must include a discussion of the substantial evidence relied upon in determining that a student is responsible for violating the Sexual Misconduct Policy. For purposes of this Policy substantial evidence means evidence that a reasonable person might accept to support the conclusion. The institution shall also notify the parties of their right to appeal as outlined below.

Disciplinary Sanctions/Outcomes

Below is a nonexclusive list of sanctions available to nonacademic conduct decision makers. In determining the severity of sanctions or corrective actions, the hearing officer or hearing panel should consider the frequency, severity, and nature of the offense, history of past conduct, the accused student's willingness to accept responsibility, strength of the evidence, and previous response by the institution to similar conduct, and the wellbeing of the university community.

Oral reprimand/warning – an oral statement of disapproval with or without written follow-up communication.

Written reprimand/warning – a written notice to the student or organization of the inappropriate nature of the conduct.

Disciplinary probation – a written reprimand to a student or organization for violation of specified regulations. Probation is for a definite period of time and includes the possibility of more severe sanctions if the student or organization is found to violate any University rules and regulations during the probationary period.

Social probation – prohibits an organization from sponsoring or participating in any organized social activity, party, or function; prohibits a student from participation within social organizations on campus or representing the University as a member of a group.

Loss of privileges – denial of specified privileges for a designated period of time. This may include, but is not limited to, loss of visitation rights, denial of participation in specific programs, denial of participation in University-related organizations or groups, denial of the right to attend University-sponsored events, and denial of access to campus resources or facilities.

Fines - monetary fines may be assigned.

Restitution – compensation for loss, damage, or injury. Restitution may take the form of appropriate service and/or monetary or material replacement.

Community service – work assignments for the benefit of the University or community. Community service assignments must be approved by the Dean of Student Life or their designee. If the student or student organization assigned community service does not complete the community service hours by the assigned completion date, the student may have a hold placed on his or her account, and may be found in violation of "Disregard for University Authority" and subject to additional University sanctions.

Assessment – a student may be required to attend sessions with a counselor for an assessment, either through the University's Counseling Center, Student Health Services, or outside provider.

Substance Abuse Education – a student may be required to meet with a substance abuse educator, attend programs, or complete courses designed to help the student deal with substance abuse issues and learn from the experience.

Educational requirements -- actions that will enhance the educational impact of the student discipline process on the student. This may include oral or written reports to the Dean of Student Life or other appropriate hearing body or officer. Educational sanctions are designed to increase the student's understanding of how his or her behavior affects others. Educational requirements when used as a disciplinary sanction within the Code of Conduct will not be related to any course or coursework required for the completion of a degree.

Loss of recognition – a student organization may lose its recognition on campus as a chartered student organization. The Dean of Student Life will notify any national or regional governing body with which the organization is associated or which sponsors social, academic, or sports events when such loss of recognition is imposed so that the full impact of this decision may be understood.

Parental notification – parents may be notified of violations of the alcohol and drug policies if the student is under the age of 21.

Suspension – separation of the student or organization from the University for a definite period of time, after which the student or organization is eligible to return. Conditions for readmission may be specified. The University may not accept or transfer academic credit for courses taken or academic work performed during the suspension.

Expulsion – permanent separation of the student or organization from the University community.

Appeals

If the decision by a hearing officer or hearing panel may be appealed, the student or organization must submit a request for appellate consideration to the Office of the Dean of Student Life within five (5) business days of the decision being appealed as determined by the date on the notification email letter.

Cases involving violations of the Code of Conduct and/or Sexual Misconduct Policy heard by any University hearing body may be appealed to the, Vice President for Enrollment and Student Affairs (VPESA) or their designee. The VPESA may appoint a panel of individuals to review the appeal and make a decision. The review will be based solely upon the written request for appellate consideration and the information presented to the University hearing body. The role of the VPESA is not to substitute their judgment for the decision of the University conduct body. Rather, appellate review only considers the following:

 Whether prescribed University disciplinary procedures were not followed such that the fairness of the hearing was impacted, including but not limited to, whether the alleged misconduct falls within the jurisdiction of the University conduct system, whether any hearing questions were improperly excluded, or whether the decision was tainted by bias;

- Whether the decisions made or sanction(s) imposed by the hearing body were consistent with the weight of the information available; and
- Whether new evidence exists sufficient to alter the original decision that was not considered at the original hearing and was not known or knowable by the accused student or organization at the time of the hearing.

Procedures for Employee Investigations:

This section establishes the procedures for resolving alleged Title IX Sexual Misconduct by employees.

- Access to Advisors: Both the Complainant and the Respondent, as parties to the matter, shall have the opportunity to use an advisor (who may or may not be an attorney) of the party's choosing. The advisor may accompany the party to all meetings and may provide advice and counsel to their respective party throughout the sexual misconduct process, including providing questions, suggestions and guidance to the party, but may not actively participate in the process except to conduct cross-examination at the hearing as outlined in the Resolution/Hearing section below. If a party chooses not to use an advisor during the investigation, AU will provide an advisor for the purpose of conducting crossexamination on behalf of the relevant party. All communication during the sexual misconduct process will be between the institution and the party and not the advisor. The institution will copy the party's advisor prior to the finalization of the investigation report when the institution provides the parties the right to inspect and review directly related information gathered during the investigation. With the party's permission, the advisor may be copied on all communications.
- B. **Investigation**: Throughout any investigation and resolution proceeding, a party shall receive written notice of the allegations made against them and shall be provided the opportunity to respond. In accordance with the AU Human Resources Administrative Practices (HRAP) on Cooperation in Internal Investigations, all employees, both parties and nonparties, are required to cooperate to the fullest extent possible in any internal investigation conducted by AU, or the

System Official designated by the System Office or the Board of Regents, when directed to do so by the persons who have been given investigative authority. Until a final determination of responsibility, the Respondent is presumed to have not violated any applicable policies associated with the allegations. Prior to finalizing the investigation report, timely and equal access to information directly related to the allegations that has been gathered during the investigation an may be used at the hearing will be provided to the Complainant, the Respondent, and a party's advisor (where applicable). Formal judicial rules of evidence do not apply to the investigation process, additionally the standard of review throughout the investigation and resolution processes is a preponderance of the evidence.

Additionally, the investigation procedures will provide the following:

1. The parties shall be provided with written notice of the: report/allegations with sufficient details, pending investigation, possible charges, possible sanctions, available support services and interim measures, and other rights under applicable institutional policies. For the purposes of this provision, sufficient details include the identities of the parties involved, if known, the conduct allegedly constituting sexual

misconduct, and the date and location of the alleged incident, if known. This information will be supplemented as dictated by evidence collected during the investigation. The notice should also include the identity of any investigator(s) involved. Notice should be provided via institution email to the party's email.

- 2. Upon receipt of the written notice, the parties shall have at least three business days to respond in writing. In that response, the Respondent shall have the right to admit or deny the allegations, and to set forth a defense with facts, witnesses, and supporting materials. A Complainant shall have the right to respond to and supplement the notice. Throughout the investigation and resolution process the Complainant and the Respondent shall have the right to present witnesses and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence.
- 3. If the Respondent admits responsibility, the process may proceed to the sanctioning phase or may be informally resolved, if appropriate.
- 4. An investigator shall conduct a thorough investigation and should retain written notes and/or obtain written or recorded statements from each interview. The investigator shall also keep a record of any party's proffered witnesses not interviewed, along with a brief, written explanation of why the witnesses were not interviewed.
- 5. An investigator shall not access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party's records made or maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, psychologist, or other recognized professional made in connection with the party's treatment unless the party has provided voluntary written consent. This also applies to information protected by recognized legal privilege.

Hearings, Possible Sanctions and Appeals-Employees

Title IX Hearings The investigator may testify as a witness regarding the investigation and findings but shall otherwise have no part in the hearing process and shall not attempt to otherwise influence the proceedings outside of providing testimony during the hearing. All directly related evidence shall be available at the hearing for the parties and their advisors to reference during the hearing. Relevant facts or evidence that were not known or knowable to the parties prior to the issuance of the final investigative report shall be admissible during the hearing. The institution will determine how the facts or evidence will be introduced. The admissibility of any facts or evidence known or knowable by the parties prior to the issuance of the final investigative report, and which were not submitted during the investigation, shall be determined by the institution in compliance with the obligation to provide both parties an equal opportunity to present and respond to witnesses and other evidence.

Notice of the date, time, and location of the hearing as well as the designated Hearing Officer shall be provided via email at least 10 calendar days prior to the hearing. Parties may attend the hearing with their advisor.

Hearings shall be conducted in-person or via video conferencing technology. At all times participants in the hearing process, including parties, a party's advisor, and institution officials, are expected to act in a manner that promotes dignity and decorum throughout the hearing. Participants are expected to be temperate, respectful to others, and follow procedural formalities outlined by this Policy and the institution. Institutions may establish their own rules of

decorum and expectations of behavior during the hearing process. The institution reserves the right to remove any participant from the hearing environment.

Each institution shall maintain documentation of the investigation and resolution process, which may include written findings of fact, transcripts, audio recordings, and/or video recordings. Any documentation shall be maintained for seven years.

Additionally, the following standards will apply:

- 1. Where a party or a witness is unavailable, unable, or otherwise unwilling to participate in the hearing, including being subject to cross-examination, the Hearing Officer shall not rely on statements of that party or witness in reaching its determination regarding responsibility. The Hearing Officer shall not draw an adverse inference against the party or witness based solely on their absence from the hearing or refusal to subject to cross- examination.
- 2. The parties shall have the right to present witnesses and evidence at the hearing.
- 3. The parties shall have the right to confront any witness, including the other party, by having their advisor ask relevant questions directly to the witness. The Hearing Officer shall limit questions raised by the advisor when they are irrelevant to determining the veracity of the allegations against the Respondent(s). In any such event, the Hearing Officer shall err on the side of permitting all the raised questions and must document the reason for not permitting any particular questions to be raised.
- 4. Questions and evidence about the Complainant's sexual predisposition or prior sexual behavior, shall be deemed irrelevant, unless such questions and evidence are offered to prove that someone other than the Respondent committed the alleged conduct or consent between the parties during the alleged incident.
- 5. Decision maker(s) shall not access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party's records made or maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, psychologist, or other recognized professional made in connection with the party's treatment unless the party has provided voluntary written consent. This also applies to information protected by recognized legal privilege.
- Formal civil rules of evidence do not apply to the resolution process and the standard of evidence shall be a preponderance of the evidence.
- 7. Following a hearing, the parties shall be simultaneously provided a written decision via email of the hearing outcome and any resulting disciplinary or administrative actions. The decision must include the allegations, procedural steps taken through the investigation and resolution process, findings of facts supporting the determination(s), determination(s) regarding responsibility, and the rationale for any disciplinary or other administrative action.

Title IX Disciplinary Action-Employees: In determining the severity of sanctions or corrective actions the following should be considered: the frequency, severity, and/or nature of the offense; history of past conduct; an offender's willingness to accept responsibility; previous institutional response to similar conduct; strength of the evidence; and the wellbeing of the university community. The institution will determine disciplinary action and issue notice of the same, as outlined above.

Title IX Appeals-Employees: The Complainant and the

Respondent shall have the right to appeal the outcome on any of the following grounds: (1) to consider new information, sufficient to alter the decision, or other relevant facts not brought out in the original investigation (or hearing), because such information was not known or knowable to the person appealing during the time of the investigation (or hearing); (2) to allege a procedural error within the investigation or hearing process that may have substantially impacted the fairness of the process, including but not limited to whether any hearing questions were improperly excluded or whether the decision was tainted by a conflict of interest or bias by the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), or administrative decision maker(s), or (3) to allege that the finding was inconsistent with the weight of the information.

The appeal must be made in writing, must set forth one or more of the bases outlined above, and must be submitted within five business days of the date of the final written decision. The appeal should be made to the President of the institution solely on the three grounds set forth. The appeal shall be a review of the record only, and no new meeting with the Respondent or the Complainant is required.

The President may affirm the original finding and sanction, affirm the original finding but issue a new sanction of greater or lesser severity, remand the case back to the decision maker to correct a procedural or factual defect, or reverse or dismiss the case if there was a procedural or factual defect that cannot be remedied by remand. The President's decision shall be simultaneously issued in writing to the Complainant, the Respondent within a reasonable time period. The President's decision shall be the final decision of the institution.

Should the Respondent or Complainant wish to appeal the President's decision, they may request review by the Board of Regents in accordance with the Board of Regents' Policy on Discretionary Review.

Our Commitment to Addressing Sexual Assault/Rape

Augusta University does not tolerate sexual misconduct or abuse, such as sexual assault, rape or any other forms of nonconsensual sexual activity. Sexual misconduct in any form violates the Student Code of Conduct, Sexual Misconduct Policy, https://www.augusta.edu/student-life/conduct and may violate Federal and State Laws. The University provides the following rights to all sexual assault victims:

- Augusta University Police are active participants in the CARE team. This is to ensure victims are provided the appropriate care in a timely fashion and with only well trained professionals.
- On campus counseling services are available to students through the Counseling Center
- When an incident warrants, students may be allowed to have a medical withdrawal from a semester or individual courses.

Sexual Misconduct Prevention, Education and Awareness Programs

Augusta University is committed to an environment that is free from gender bias and gender discrimination and through prevention and education efforts will ensure all new students and employees understand expectations associated with the Student Sexual Misconduct policy and behaviors, which are prohibited. Through ongoing programs, events, activities and training each year; departments collaborate to heighten awareness and discuss the importance of reporting incidents related to sexual misconduct, dating violence, domestic violence and stalking. The educational programs provide faculty, staff and students with the necessary tools and

resources to report incidents, learn how to be an active bystander and where to go for support services for incidents related to sexual harassment, sexual exploitation, nonconsensual sexual contact, dating violence, domestic violence and stalking.

Throughout the year there are numerous opportunities for workshops, training and education using a variety of modalities and strategies. Students and employees participate with online training, in person workshops at student and employee orientation, annual compliance training, workshops through Human Resources, Lunch and Learn workshops, training and awareness activities sponsored by Academic Departments, Student Engagement, Multicultural Student Engagement, Student Clubs and Organizations, Athletic Department, Greek Life, Residence Life and Housing and the Wellness Center. Prevention and education is imperative to create a community, which supports victims, encourages reporting, strengthens bystander intervention efforts and cultivates a community, which takes any and all allegations seriously. Reducing the risks associated with sexual violence and interpersonal violence is discussed during employee and student orientation sessions.

- The University System of Georgia through Haven/Everfi provides annual online Sexual Assault Prevention training for all new Augusta University students and employees.
- Rape Aggression Defense System (RAD) Is a monthly program coordinated and delivered by the Augusta University Police Department.
- 3) New Student Orientations:
 - a) Presentations for all new incoming students (Undergraduate, Graduate and Professional) during Orientation sessions regarding sexual misconduct and resources for students who may be victims of sexual misconduct.
 - b) Title IX Sexual Misconduct training for all Resident Assistants and Residence Life Coordinators employed by Housing and Residence Life.
- 4) The Domestic Violence Awareness Month Committee provides annual events and education:
 - a) Purple Light Nights (Domestic Violence Awareness Month)
 - b) Speaker who is a survivor of domestic violence
 - c) Survivor walk
 - The escalation workshop is offered each semester to educate students, faculty and staff to prevent dating violence, domestic violence and stalking
 - e) Panel for domestic violence with local law enforcement, SafeHomes representatives, and a sociology professor whose research is primarily based in domestic violence.
- 5) The Sexual Assault Awareness Month Committee provides annual events and education:
 - Walk A Mile—men wear high heels to bring awareness to sexual abuse of women
 - b) Speaker who is a survivor of a sexual assault
 - c) Host of Augusta's Take Back the Night program

Sex Offender Registration - Campus Sex Crimes Prevention Act

Any person who is required under the laws of the State of Georgia to register as a sex offender is also required to provide written notice to the Augusta University Police Department that they are enrolled as a student, carrying on a vocation, or employed by the Augusta University. Furthermore, the student or employee is required to provide written notice of each change in enrollment or employment to the Augusta University Police Department.

The Sex Offender registry for the State of Georgia is located on the Georgia Bureau of Investigation's website: https://gbi.georgia.gov/services/georgia-sex-offender-registry In accordance with O.C.G.A. 42-1-12, the Georgia Bureau of Investigation (GBI) is the central repository for Georgia's Violent Sexual Offender Registry.

The Sex Offender Registry for Richmond County is on the Richmond County Sherriff's Office website: https://www.richmondcountysheriffsoffice.com/sex-

offenders.cfm

The Sex Offender Registry for those persons enrolled as a student, carrying on a vocation, or employed by the Augusta University may be viewed at the Augusta University Police Department.

Policies Governing Alcohol and Other Drugs Alcohol on Campus

Augusta University has established policies and procedures providing guidelines for the possession, sale, and consumption of alcoholic beverages on campus. Augusta University neither encourages nor condemns the legal consumption of alcoholic beverages by those who have reached the legal age as dictated by Georgia State law. The legal drinking age in Georgia is 21.

Consumption of Alcohol on Campus - University Sponsored Events

The service of alcohol at Augusta University events, programs sponsored by the University, or its direct support organizations, will be prohibited unless advance written permission is received from the Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost. Any person or organization requesting permission to serve alcohol will be required to adhere to the process and procedures outlined in the University's Alcohol and Other Drug policy. Our policy can be found at the Augusta University website: https://www.augusta.edu/student-life/conduct/

Consumption of Alcohol on Campus - Non-University Sponsored Events

Augusta University is committed to maintaining a safe and inviting campus environment, for its, students, faculty, staff and visitors. Any use of alcoholic beverages must be in compliance with Georgia law including the prohibition of use by persons under 21.

Employees who are under the influence of alcohol or drugs on the job may pose serious safety and health risks not only to the employee, but other staff, students and patients. Augusta University has established a Substance Abuse policy that provides further information regarding employee responsibilities.

Each person is legally responsible for his or her actions in all mental and physical conditions, including those induced by alcoholic beverages.

Augusta University's policies regarding alcohol and the service of alcoholic beverages on campus can be found at the following web addresses:

Alcohol Abuse and Health Risks

There are long-term health risks associated with alcohol use. These risks include damage to the heart, liver, and brain. However, it should be noted that the vast majority of our health risks occur over the course of a single evening, not after decades of abuse. A college-aged student has a much higher risk of an alcohol-related injury caused by a car crash, slipping or falling, getting into a fight, etc. than developing cirrhosis of the liver. However, understanding the long-term health risks is important because young adults who continue the behavior of drinking heavily risk damaging their bodies in numerous ways, including permanent damage to internal organs.

Other Drugs

Augusta University is committed to providing a safe and healthy environment that is conducive to living and learning. Therefore, the Augusta University prohibits the illegal use, possession, manufacture, distribution, and sale of drugs and drug paraphernalia on its campus. The specifics are outlined as follows:

- The illegal use possession, manufacture, distribution and sale of drugs, including prescription drugs are prohibited.
- The illegal use possession, manufacture, distribution, and sale of drug paraphernalia are prohibited. Drug paraphernalia includes but is not limited to: pipes, bongs, roach clips, rolling papers, and syringes.
- Behavior that is a direct result of drug consumption, use, or abuse is prohibited. Any student found to be visibly overcome by the use of drugs may be found responsible of a violation of the Augusta University Student Code of Conduct.
- Illegally driving under the influence of drugs is prohibited.

Additionally, the State of Georgia's Drug-Free Post-Secondary Education Act of 1990 provides for mandatory suspension of individual students committing certain felony offenses involving marijuana, controlled substances, or dangerous drugs. It applies to students enrolled in courses for academic credit. According to OCGA §20-1-23,

"Any student of a public educational institution who is convicted, under the laws of this state, the United States, or any other state, of any felony offense involving the manufacture, distribution, sale, possession, or use of marijuana, a controlled substance, or a dangerous drug shall as of the date of conviction be suspended from the public educational institution in which such person is enrolled. Such suspension shall continue through the end of the term, quarter, semester, or other similar period for which the student was enrolled as of the date of conviction. The student shall forfeit any right to any academic credit otherwise earned or earnable for such term, quarter, semester, or other similar period; and the educational institution shall subsequently revoke any such academic credit which is granted prior to the completion of administrative actions necessary to implement such suspension."

Additionally, students who have been convicted of any offense under any federal or state law involving the possession or sale of a controlled substance may be ineligible to receive grants, loans and/or Federal Work Study assistance. For more information, contact the Office of Financial Aid.

Augusta University distributes this document as a part of the University's compliance with the Drug Free Schools and Communities Act Amendments of 1989.

Drug and Alcohol Abuse Education Programs

Augusta University's Student Counseling and Psychological Services Center provides comprehensive and confidential services to its students, staff, and faculty, including individual, couples and group counselling, as well as consultation and crisis services. In addition to other programs, the Student Counseling and Psychological Services have an alcohol and drug program which assists individuals with alcohol and other drug related problems. The Student Counseling and Psychological Services Center offers a number of useful tools and education, including:

- Alcohol And Drug Counseling Program
- Tips On How To Cut Down On Your Drinking
- Where Are You With Your Drinking?
- How To Tell If A Loved One Has A Problem With Alcohol, Marijuana Or Other Drugs
- Where To Go For Help With Drug Or Alcohol Problems
- Links To Other Helpful Sites

Additionally, Student Health Services offers care for both physical health concerns and mental health concerns though the staff psychiatrist.

Annual Fire Safety Report

This report contains information related to fire safety in campus housing at Augusta University in accordance with the requirements of the Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008. The Augusta University Fire Safety Office creates this report annually, relying on information provided by collaborative partners, including but not limited to the Augusta University Police Department, and the Housing and Residence Life Department.

The Augusta University Fire Safety Office maintains the campus housing Fire Log and reports fire statistics annually in conjunction with the "Annual Crime Report" which provides information in compliance with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Crime Statistics Act.

The Augusta University Annual Crime Statistics can be accessed at:

https://www.augusta.edu/police/cleryandcrime/clery.php.

Fire Statistics and Fire Log

The Augusta University Fire Safety Office maintains the campus housing Fire Log and all statistics on fires and related injuries, death, and loss in campus housing as defined by the Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008 in section 668.49.

From 2015 to present, three fires occurred in campus housing, all minor fires involving unattended cooking. No injuries have occurred as a result of these fires, and property damage was less than \$500.00 in each incident.

Unintentional Fires:	2019	2018	2017
Cooking	0	1	2
Smoking materials	0	0	0
Open Flames	0	0	0
Electrical	0	0	0
Heating Equipment	0	0	0
Hazardous Products	0	0	0
Machinery/Industrial	0	0	0
Natural	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0
Intentional Fires:	0	0	0
Undetermined Fires:	0	0	0

Fire Safety Systems

- University Village Building 1000 is a partially sprinkled residence. All areas of the building are sprinkled with the exceptions of each residence bathroom. The fire alarm system has individual room smoke detectors, audible alarms and strobes that are part of the building system. The fire alarm system is monitored by Augusta University Public Safety 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Fire Extinguishers are provided to the residents and are located in each apartment under the kitchen sink. Residents are advised to call Augusta University Public Safety at 706-721-2911 in the event of a fire.
- University Village Building 2000 is a partially sprinkled residence. All areas of the building are sprinkled with the exceptions of each residence bathroom. The fire alarm system has individual room smoke detectors, audible alarms and strobes that are part of the building system. The fire alarm system is monitored by Augusta University Public

- Safety 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Fire Extinguishers are provided to the residents and are located in each apartment under the kitchen sink. Residents are advised to call Augusta University Public Safety at 706-721-2911 in the event of a fire.
- University Village Building 3000 is a partially sprinkled residence. All areas of the building are sprinkled with the exceptions of each residence bathroom. The fire alarm system has individual room smoke detectors, audible alarms and strobes that are part of the building system. The fire alarm system is monitored by Augusta University Public Safety 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Fire Extinguishers are provided to the residents and are located in each apartment under the kitchen sink. Residents are advised to call Augusta University Public Safety at 706-721-2911 in the event of a fire.
- University Village Building 4000 is a partially sprinkled residence. All areas of the building are sprinkled with the exceptions of each residence bathroom. The fire alarm system has individual room smoke detectors, audible alarms and strobes that are part of the building system. The fire alarm system is monitored by Augusta University Public Safety 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Fire Extinguishers are provided to the residents and are located in each apartment under the kitchen sink. Residents are advised to call Augusta University Public Safety at 706-721-2911 in the event of a fire.
- University Village Building 5000 is a partially sprinkled residence. All areas of the building are sprinkled with the exceptions of each residence bathroom. The fire alarm system has individual room smoke detectors, audible alarms and strobes that are part of the building system. The fire alarm system is monitored by Augusta University Public Safety 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Fire Extinguishers are provided to the residents and are located in each apartment under the kitchen sink. Residents are advised to call Augusta University Public Safety at 706-721-2911 in the event of a fire.
- Elm Hall is the Graduate Student Housing for Augusta University and is a fully sprinkled residence. It is a residence that opened in August 2016. The fire alarm system has individual room heat sensors, audible alarms and strobes that are part of the building system. The fire alarm system is monitored by Augusta University Public Safety 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Residents are advised to call Augusta University Public Safety at 706-721-2911 in the event of a fire.
- Oak Hall is Undergraduate Housing and is a fully sprinkled residence. It is a residence that opened in August 2016. The fire alarm system has individual room smoke detectors, audible alarms and strobes that are part of the building system. The fire alarm system is monitored by Augusta University Public Safety 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Residents are advised to call Augusta University Public Safety at 706-721-2911 in the event of a fire.

All common use kitchens in Residence Halls on the Health Science Campus are provided with 10 lb. ABC Fire Extinguishers. All common use kitchen doors are provided with positive latching and fire rated doors.

All fire alarm systems are checked and maintained on an annual basis. Fire Sprinkler systems are checked and maintained on a semi-annual basis by an outside vendor. Sprinkler systems and fire extinguishers are inspected by the Augusta University Fire Safety Office monthly.

Fire Drills

Mandatory supervised fire drills are conducted 4 times a year, during fall, winter, spring, & summer semesters. Fire Drills were conducted on the following dates:

Elm Hall	03/05/19	06/05/19	09/04/19	12/11/19
Dilli Hali	03/03/13	00/03/17	03/01/13	12/11/17
Oak Hall	03/05/19	06/05/19	09/04/19	12/11/19
oun mun	00,00,13	00,00,13	05/01/15	12/11/17
University	030/5/19	06/05/19	09/04/19	12/11/19
,	030/3/17	00/03/17	03/01/13	12/11/17
Village				

Fire Drills are conducted by the Augusta University Fire Safety Office, and all reports and statistical data are monitored. Details of the fire drill are sent to Housing and Residence Life. Resident Assistants assist with the orderly and timely evacuation of the building and directing students to the designated evacuation site. Students failing to evacuate or participate are noted in the fire drill report that is sent to Housing and Residence Life.

A post-drill review is conducted with all staff and residents to discuss the success of the drill and additional actions that may be necessary for future drills.

Procedures for Evacuation of Campus Housing

All students receive an evacuation destination notice with safety tips from Augusta University Housing and Residence Life upon checking into campus housing. Evacuation routes and destination maps are posted on the back of all unit doors. The route also identifies exits, stairwells, fire alarm pull stations, and fire extinguisher locations.

Common area evacuation diagrams are posted throughout all campus-housing facilities, in compliance of with applicable fire codes. All designated evacuation locations are located at least 100 feet from the specific campus housing facility.

Building schematics and emergency information are provided to Augusta University Police Department and the Augusta Richmond County Fire Department for emergency preplanning activities. This information is updated on an annual basis by the Augusta University Fire Safety Office. Updated information is provided as a CD for agency use.

Policies on Portable Appliances, Smoking, and Open Flames in Campus Housing

Policies concerning fire safety in campus housing can be found at: http://www.augusta.edu/housing/.

Additional fire safety information can be found at: http://www.augusta.edu/services/ehs/firesafe/. This includes:

- The Fire Code Red Policy governs fire safety and fire reporting in campus residences.
- The Holiday, Special Event and Decorating Policy outlines the decoration and interior lighting safety requirements for the campus.
- The Electrical Safety Policy outlines the use of electrical equipment and appliances on campus

Guidelines for Fire Safety in Student Residences

- Smoking: Smoking is not permitted on property that is owned or leased by Augusta University.
- Furnishings: Apartments and rooms are required to have as low a combustible load as practicable. This means self-renovations such as adding wood paneling to walls and constructing wooden furniture are not allowed.
- Extension cords: Outlet extenders and permanent extension cords are not allowed. All surge protectors are required to be off the floor to keep the cords and housing from being damaged.
- Storage: Improper storage of any materials is a serious violation of State fire codes. Storage is not allowed in heating and air conditioning closets or stairwells. Items blocking electrical panels or doors are a State Fire Code violation.
- Candles: candles are not allowed in student housing.
- Decorations: Paper decorations on doors, ceilings, or walls, and live Christmas trees anywhere are not allowed.
- Appliances: Space heaters are not allowed in campus housing. Permitted appliances are outlined in the Residence Hall living guidebook.
- Unattended cooking: Hot plates are not allowed in student residences. Students must be present when using common area kitchens to cook.
- Fire Safety Equipment: Fire Safety equipment includes, but is not limited to fire alarms, smoke detectors, fire extinguishers and unit door closures. Tampering with or the misuse of fire safety equipment is prohibited. This includes removing or disabling a smoke detector. If a smoke detector battery needs to be replaced, students should contact Residence Life at (706) 721-3471. Anyone found vandalizing or using fire safety equipment for any purpose other than safety will be reported to Augusta University Police Department. Additional fire safety information may be obtained from the Environmental Health and Safety Division web site a: http://www.augusta.edu/services/ehs/firesafe/.

Fire Safety Education and Training Programs

All Augusta University Resident Assistants are trained on a yearly basis by the Fire Safety Office. Resident Assistants are trained on fire safety protocols based on issues related to campus residences. This training includes the proper use of Fire Extinguishers. Students are trained using the BullEx Fire Extinguisher Simulator.

Fire (Code Red) procedures for campus housing are as follows:

IN CASE OF FIRE:

- 1. Do not panic; remain calm.
- 2. Remove persons in immediate danger of the fire. If not already closed, close door to room affected.
- 3. If room is smoky, get on hands and knees (or stomach) and crawl to door.
- 4. Feel door knob; if hot do not open door; if cool, open door slowly.
- 5. If hallway is smoky, stay next to the wall and count the doors as you crawl to exit.
- 6. Activate the nearest fire alarm box and call the Augusta University Police Department at 706-721-2911 and give the location and kind of fire.
- 7. Calmly notify other occupants in the area.
- 8. Do not prop open doors to exit stairways.
- 9. If possible, attempt to extinguish the fire with the fire extinguisher provided in your area.
- 10. Once out of the area, do not return to the building for any reason.

Students are required to demonstrate these procedures when fire drills are conducted by the Augusta University Fire Safety Office. Any student not demonstrating the proper procedures is given remedial instruction on proper procedures.

Reporting of Fire Safety Information

All fire safety concerns should be immediately reported to Augusta University Police Department at 706-721-2911, 7 days a week, 24 hours a day. Information related to fire safety reporting for campus housing should be submitted to the Augusta University Fire Safety Office at 706-721-2663.

Plans for Future Improvements in Fire Safety

The Augusta University Fire Safety Office continues to heighten fire safety awareness in Campus Housing by training and increased inspections. Fire Safety training of all Resident Assistants takes place prior to every academic year in August. The Augusta University Fire Safety Office will continue these activities in the future.

Definitions of Reportable Crimes

Primary Crimes

Murder and Non Negligent Manslaughter

The willful (non-negligent) killing of one human being by another.

Manslaughter by Negligence

The killing of another person through gross negligence.

Sexual Assault (Sex Offenses)

An offense that meets the definition of rape, fondling, incest or statutory rape as used in the FBI's Uniform Crime Reporting system. A sex offense is any sexual act directed against another person, without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent.

- Rape is defined as the penetration, no matter how slight, of the vagina or anus with any body part or object or oral penetration by a sex organ of another person, without the consent of the victim. This offense includes the rape of both males and females.
- Fondling is defined as the touching of the private parts of another person for the purposes of sexual gratification, without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her age or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental incapacity.
- Incest is sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
- Statutory Rape is sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent.

Robbery

The taking or attempting to take anything of value from the care, custody or control of a person or persons by force or threat of force or violence and/or by putting the victim in fear.

Aggravated Assault

An unlawful attack by one person upon another for the purpose of inflicting severe or aggravated bodily injury. This type of assault usually is accompanied by the use of a weapon or by means likely to produce death or great bodily harm.

Burglary

The unlawful entry of a structure to commit a felony or a theft. The UCR classifies offenses locally known as Burglary (any degree), unlawful entry with intent to commit a larceny or felony, breaking and entering with intent to commit a larceny, housebreaking, safecracking, and all attempts at these offenses as Burglary.

Motor Vehicle Theft

The theft or attempted theft of a motor vehicle. Arson Any willful or malicious burning or attempt to burn, with or without intent to defraud, a dwelling house, public building, motor vehicle or aircraft, personal property of another, etc.

Larceny-Theft

The unlawful taking, carrying, leading or riding away of property from the possession or constructive possession of another.

Simple Assault

An unlawful physical attack by one person upon another where neither the offender displays a weapon, nor the victim suffers obvious severe or aggravated bodily injury involving apparent broken bones, loss of teeth, possible internal injury, severe laceration or loss of consciousness.

Intimidation

To unlawfully place another person in reasonable fear of bodily harm through the use of threatening words and/or other conduct, but without displaying a weapon or subjecting the victim to actual physical attack.

Destruction/Damage/Vandalism of Property

To willfully or maliciously destroy, damage, deface or otherwise injure real or personal property without the consent of the owner or the person having custody or control of it. Hate Crimes Any of the aforementioned offenses, larceny, simple assault, intimidation and vandalism reported to local police agencies or to a campus security authority, that manifests evidence that the victim was intentionally selected because of the perpetrator's bias.

Categories of bias are:

- Race. A preformed negative attitude toward a group of persons
 who possess common physical characteristics (e.g., color of
 skin, eyes and/or hair; facial features, etc.) genetically
 transmitted by descent and heredity which distinguish them as
 a distinct division of humankind (e.g., Asians, blacks, whites).
- Gender. A preformed negative opinion or attitude toward a person or group of persons based on their actual or perceived gender, e.g., male or female.
- Religion. A preformed negative opinion or attitude toward a group of persons who share the same religious beliefs regarding the origin and purpose of the universe and the existence or nonexistence of a supreme being (e.g., Catholics, Jews, Protestants, Atheists).
- Sexual orientation. A preformed negative opinion or attitude toward a group of persons based on their actual or perceived sexual orientation.
- Gender Identity. A preformed negative opinion or attitude toward a person or group of persons based on their actual or perceived gender identity, e.g., bias against transgender or gender nonconforming individuals.
- Ethnicity. A preformed negative opinion or attitude toward a group of people whose members identify with each other, through a common heritage, often consisting of a common language, common culture (often including a shared religion) and/or ideology that stresses common ancestry. The concept of ethnicity differs from the closely related term race in that "race" refers to grouping based mostly upon biological criteria, while "ethnicity" also encompasses additional cultural factors.
 Disability. A preformed negative opinion or attitude toward a group of persons based on their physical or mental impairments, whether such disability is temporary or permanent, congenital or acquired by heredity, accident, injury, advanced age or illness.
- National Origin. A preformed negative opinion or attitude toward a group of people based on their actual or perceived country of birth.

Domestic Violence

A felony or misdemeanor crime of violence committed by:

- A current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim;
 a person with whom the victim shares a child in common;
- A person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner;
- A person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction receiving grant monies [under VAWA]; or
- Any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that person's acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction.

Dating Violence

Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim. The existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on the reporting party's statement and with consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of relationship and the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship. Dating violence includes, but is not limited to, sexual or physical abuse or the threat of such abuse.

Stalking

Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to: • fear for his or her safety or the safety of others; or • suffer substantial emotional distress.

Liquor Law Violations

The violation of state or local laws or ordinances prohibiting the manufacture, sale, purchase, transportation, possession or use of alcoholic beverages, not including driving under the influence and drunkenness.

Drug Law Violations

The violation of laws prohibiting the production, distribution and/or use of certain controlled substances and the equipment or devices utilized in their preparation and/or use; the unlawful cultivation, manufacture, distribution, sale, purchase, use, possession, transportation or importation of any controlled drug or narcotic substance.

Unfounded Crimes

An institution may withhold, or subsequently, remove a reported crime from its crime statistics in the rare situations where sworn or commissioned law enforcement personnel have fully investigated the reported crime and, based on the results of this full investigation and evidence, have made a formal determination that the crime report is false or baseless and, therefore, "unfounded." Only sworn or commissioned law enforcement personnel may "unfound" a crime report for purposes of reporting under this section. The recovery of stolen property, the low value of stolen property, the refusal of the victim to cooperate with the prosecution and the failure to make an arrest do not "unfound" a crime report.

Weapons Law Violations

The violation of laws or ordinances prohibiting the manufacture, sale, purchase, transportation, possession, concealment or use of firearms, cutting instruments, explosives, incendiary devices or other deadly weapons.

Geographic Definitions

On Campus

Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area and used by the institution in direct support of or in a manner related to, the institution's educational purposes, including residence halls; and Any building or property that is within or reasonably contiguous to paragraph (1) of this definition, that is owned by the institution but controlled by another person, is frequently used by students and supports institutional purposes (such as a food or other retail vendor).

Non-campus

Building or Property Any building or property owned or controlled by a student organization that is officially recognized by the institution; or Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution that is used in direct support of or in relation to, the institution's educational purposes, is frequently used by students and is not within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area of the institution.

Public Property

All public property (including thoroughfares, streets, sidewalks and parking facilities) that is within the campus or immediately adjacent to and accessible from the campus.

Annual Disclosure of Crime Statistics

Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act (20 USC § 1092(f)) requires colleges and universities across the United States to disclose information about crime on and around their campuses. Augusta University Police Department maintains a close relationship with all police departments where Augusta University owns or controls property to ensure that crimes reported directly to these police

departments that involve Augusta University are brought to the attention of the Police Department.

Augusta University Police collects the crime statistics disclosed in the charts through a number of methods. Police dispatchers and officers enter all reports of crime incidents made directly to the department through an integrated computer aideddispatch systems/records management system. After an officer enters the report in the system, a department administrator reviews the report to ensure it is appropriately classified in the correct crime category. The Department periodically examines the data to ensure that all reported crimes are recorded in accordance with the crime definitions outlined in the FBI Uniform Crime Reporting Handbook and the FBI National Incident-Based Reporting System Handbook (sex offenses only). In addition to the crime data that the Police Department maintains, the statistics below also include crimes that are reported to various campus security authorities, as defined in this report. The statistics reported here generally reflect the number of criminal incidents reported to the various authorities. The statistics reported for the sub categories on liquor laws, drug laws and weapons offenses represent the number of people arrested or referred to campus judicial authorities for respective violations, not the number of offenses documented.

Definitions and Additional Information:

The total number of Unfounded Crimes includes all Clery Act reportable offenses, hate crimes, arrests or disciplinary action referrals for weapons, drug or liquor law violations, and domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking incidents that have been unfounded. This category shows those crimes that occurred On-Campus, in On-Campus Student Residential Facilities, on or in Non-Campus property or buildings, and on Public Property that were unfounded.

The Campus Security Act Requires that reportable crimes are broken down into four categories: on campus, non-campus, public property and residential facilities. The term "campus" means any building or property owned or controlled by an institution of higher education within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area of the institution and used by the institution in direct support of, or in a manner related to, the institution's educational purposes, including residential facilities; and property within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area of the institution that is owned by the institution, but controlled by another person, is used by students, and supports institutional purposes (such as a food or other retail vendor). The term "non-campus" means any building or property owned or controlled by a student organization recognized by the institution; and any building or property (other than a branch campus) owned or controlled by an institution of higher education that is used in direct support of, or in relation to, the institution's educational purposes, is used by students, and is not within the same reasonable contiguous geographic area of the institution. The term "public property" means all public property, including thoroughfares, streets, sidewalks, and parking facilities, that is within the campus, or immediately adjacent to and accessible from the campus. An enumerated crime that occurs on property immediately adjacent to, or within an area up to the far curbing of any street adjacent to campus property is reported under the "public property" category.

The "Crime Statistics" for the Augusta University is published annually by the Augusta University Clery Committee. For additional information you may call the Augusta University Police Department at (706) 721-2914, Monday - Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. EST., or visit our website at:

https://www.augusta.edu/police/

	Summerville Campus			
Reportable Offenses	Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Murder / Non-Negligent Manslaughter	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
maraor, iton itogrigoni manoraagino.	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	1	2	1
Rape	Residential Facilities	1	2	1
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	1	1	1
Fondling	Residential Facilities	1	1	1
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Incest	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Statutory Nape	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	2	0	0
Robbery	Residential Facilities	1	0	0
Robbery	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
_	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Aggiuvatou Assault	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	1	1	4
Burglary	Residential Facilities	0	1	3
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	1
Motor Vehicle Theft	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
motor vollidio filore	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Arson	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Algori	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0

Reportable Offenses	Summerville Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Weapons Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Weapons Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	2	3	10
Drug Law Violations	Residential Facilities	2	3	6
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	2	0	0
Drug Law Violations	Residential Facilities	2	0	3
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Liquor Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	4	0	0
Liquor Law Violations	Residential Facilities	4	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
Reportable VAWA Offenses	Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	0	1	3
Dating Violence	Residential Facilities	0	0	3
	Non-Campus Property	0	1	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Domestic Violence	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	8	1	0
Stalking	Residential Facilities	2	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
Unfounded Crimes		2019	2018	2017
Total Unfounded Crimes		0	0	0

The total number of Unfounded Crimes includes all Clery Act reportable offenses, hate crimes, arrests or disciplinary action referrals for weapons, drug or liquor law violations, and domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking incidents that have been unfounded. This category shows those crimes that occurred On-Campus, in On-Campus Student Residential Facilities, on or in Non-Campus property or buildings, and on Public Property that were unfounded.

2019 Hate Crime		Ra	ice			Reli	gion		Sex	ual Oı	rienta	tion		Gen	der	
Reportable Offenses	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
Summerville Campus																
Murder / Non-negligent																
manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage /	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Vandalism of Property																l
Reportable Offenses	Gender Identity			Disability			Ethnicity			Na	<mark>itiona</mark>	l Orig	in			
•	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Their																1
Intimidation Destruction / Damage /	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

OC = On Campus Property RF = Residential Facilities NC = Non-Campus Property PP = Public Property

The "Hate Crime Statistics" for the Augusta University is published annually by the AU Police Department. For additional information you may call the AU Police Department at (706) 721-2914, Monday - Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. EST., or visit our website at: http://www.augusta.edu/police/cleryandcrime/index.php

2049 Hote Crime		Ra	ice			Reli	gion		Sex	ual O	rienta	tion		Gen	der	
2018 Hate Crime Reportable Offenses	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
Summerville Campus																
Murder / Non-negligent																
manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage /	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Vandalism of Property																
Reportable Offenses	G	ender	Identi	ity		Disa	bility			Ethn	icity		Na	tiona	l Orig	in
	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

OC = On Campus Property RF = Residential Facilities NC = Non-Campus Property PP = Public Property

The "Hate Crime Statistics" for the Augusta University is published annually by the AU Police Department. For additional information you may call the AU Police Department at (706) 721-2914, Monday - Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. EST., or visit our website at: http://www.augusta.edu/police/cleryandcrime/index.php

Hata Crima 2047		Ra	ice			Reli	gion		Sex	ual O	rienta	tion		Gen	der	
Hate Crime 2017 Reportable Offenses	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
Summerville Campus																
Murder / Non-negligent	_	_	_	_	_		_	_	_	_	_		_	_	•	
manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage /	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Vandalism of Property																
Reportable Offenses	G		Identi	ty		Disa	bility			Ethn			Na		l Orig	
•	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

OC = On Campus Property RF = Residential Facilities NC = Non-Campus Property PP = Public Property

The "Hate Crime Statistics" for the Augusta University is published annually by the AU Police Department. For additional information you may call the AU Police Department at (706) 721-2914, Monday - Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. EST., or visit our website at: http://www.augusta.edu/police/cleryandcrime/index.php

Reportable Offenses	Health Science Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	0	1	0
Murder / Non-Negligent Manslaughter	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Maraer / Non-Negligent Mansiaughter	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	1
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
_	On-Campus Property	2	3	0
Rape	Residential Facilities	1	1	0
Sex Offense – Forcible	Non-Campus Property Public Property	0	0	0
	, ,		_	
	On-Campus Property	5	3	2
Fondling Sex Offense – Forcible	Residential Facilities Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
Sex Offerise - Forcible	Public Property	0	0	0
	<u> </u>		_	
Incest	On-Campus Property Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Sex Offense – Non-Forcible	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
OCA Offerise - Non-Foreible	Public Property	0	0	0
	, ,		0	0
Statutory Rape	On-Campus Property Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Sex Offense – Non-Forcible	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	3	2	0
	Residential Facilities	1	0	0
Robbery	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	2	0	0
Aggreyated Assault	Residential Facilities	1	0	0
Aggravated Assault	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	1	5	0
Burglary	Residential Facilities	0	1	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	4	1	14
Motor Vehicle Theft	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
motor vernore riter	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Arson	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
,	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0

Reportable Offenses	Health Science Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	0	0	1
Weapons Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	1	1
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Weapons Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	3	4	10
Drug Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	5
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	2	3
	On-Campus Property	4	0	5
Drug Law Violations	Residential Facilities	4	0	4
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	1	0	0
Liquor Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	5	0	0
Liquor Law Violations	Residential Facilities	5	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
Reportable VAWA Offenses	Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	4	1	2
Dating Violence	Residential Facilities	4	2	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	4	0
	Public Property	0	2	0
	On-Campus Property	8	4	5
Domestic Violence	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	9	4	5
Stalking	Residential Facilities	5	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	1	0
Unfounded Crimes		2019	2018	2017
Total Unfounded Crimes		0	1	1

The total number of Unfounded Crimes includes all Clery Act reportable offenses, hate crimes, arrests or disciplinary action referrals for weapons, drug or liquor law violations, and domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking incidents that have been unfounded. This category shows those crimes that occurred On-Campus, in On-Campus Student Residential Facilities, on or in Non-Campus property or buildings, and on Public Property that were unfounded.

2019 Hate Crime		Ra	ice			Reli	gion		Sex	ual Oı	rienta	tion		Gen	der	
Reportable Offenses	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
Health Science Campus																
Murder / Non-negligent	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
manslaughter	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
i vangalism of Property																
	l		l	l					l				l			
			Identi			Disa				Ethn					l Orig	
Reportable Offenses	G(ender RF	Identi NC	ty PP	OC	Disa RF	bility NC	PP	OC	Ethn RF	icity NC	PP	Na OC	tiona RF	l Orig NC	in PP
					OC 0			PP 0	OC 0			PP 0				
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent	ОС	RF	NC	PP		RF	NČ			RF	NĆ		ОС	RF	NC	PP
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	OC 0	RF 0	NC 0	PP 0	0	RF 0	NC 0	0	0	RF 0	NC 0	0	000	RF 0	NC 0	PP 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape	0 0 0	RF 0 0	0 0	PP 0 0	0	RF 0	0 0	0	0	RF 0	0 0	0	0 0 0	RF 0	NC 0	PP 0 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling	0 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	PP 0 0 0	0 0 0	RF 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	RF 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0	0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0	0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery	0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	NC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault	0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft Arson	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft Arson Simple Assault	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2018 Hate Crime		Ra	ice			Relig	gion		Sex	ual O	rienta	tion		Gen	der	
Reportable Offenses	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Health Science Campus																
Murder / Non-negligent	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage /	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Vandalism of Property											<u> </u>					
1																
Reportable Offenses	G		ldent	ity		Disa	bility			Ethn			Na		l Orig	in
Reportable Offenses	OC OC	ender RF	Ident NC	ity PP	ОС	Disa RF	bility NC	PP	ОС	Ethn RF	icity NC	PP	Na OC	tiona RF	l Orig	in PP
Reportable Offenses Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter					OC			PP 0	OC			PP 0				
Murder / Non-negligent	ОС	RF	NC	PP		RF	NĆ			RF	NČ		ОС	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	00	RF 0	NC 0	PP 0	0	RF 0	NĆ 0	0	0	RF 0	NC 0	0	00	RF 0	NC 0	PP 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape	0 0 0	RF 0	0 0	PP 0 0	0	RF 0	0 0	0	0	RF 0 0	0 0	0	0 0 0	RF 0	0 0	PP 0 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling	0 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	PP 0 0 0	0 0 0	RF 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	RF 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	RF 0 0 0	0 0 0	PP 0 0 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	9P 0 0 0 0	0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault	0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft Arson	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter Rape Fondling Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft Arson Simple Assault	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	OC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	RF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2017 Hate Crime		Ra	ice			Reli	gion		Sex	ual O	rienta	tion		Ger	der	
Reportable Offenses	OC	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Health Science Campus																
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	<u> </u>		Identi	4	l	Disa	h:1:4.		l	E4b a	ialtu		N.	4:	l Orig	:
Reportable Offenses	OC	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	OC	Ethn RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Reportable Offenses	UGA Medical Partnership Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Murder / Nen Negligent Meneleughter	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Murder / Non-Negligent Manslaughter	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Rape	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property			
Foundling	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Fondling	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property Public Property	0	0	0
	· ·			_
Incast	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Incest	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property Public Property	0	0	0
	· · · ·			_
Statutary Bana	On-Campus Property Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Robbery	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Burnley	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Burglary	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Motor Vohiolo Thoft	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Arson	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Alson	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0

Reportable Offenses	Medical Partnership	2019	2018	2017
	Locations			
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Weapons Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Weapons Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Drug Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Drug Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Liquor Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Liquor Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
Reportable VAWA Offenses	Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Dating Violence	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Dating Violence	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Domestic Violence	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
2 5 3 5 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Stalking	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
Unfounded Crimes		2019	2018	2017
Total Unfounded Crimes		0	0	0
Total Uniounded Chines				

The total number of Unfounded Crimes includes all Clery Act reportable offenses, hate crimes, arrests or disciplinary action referrals for weapons, drug or liquor law violations, and domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking incidents that have been unfounded. This category shows those crimes that occurred On-Campus, in On-Campus Student Residential Facilities, on or in Non-Campus property or buildings, and on Public Property that were unfounded.

2019 Hate Crime		Ra	ice			Reli	gion		Sex	ual Oı	rienta	tion		Gen	der	
Reportable Offenses UGA	ОС	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Medical Partnership																
Murder / Non-negligent	0	0	0	_	^	^	0	^	^	^	^	0	0	0	0	0
manslaughter	0	0	U	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	U	0	U	U	U
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage /	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Vandalism of Property																
Reportable Offenses	G		Identi	ity		Disa	oility			Ethn	icity		Na		l Orig	in
•	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	_															
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape Robbery					_	_				_		_	_			-
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery Aggravated Assault	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0 0
Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0
Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0
Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft Arson	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0
Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft Arson Simple Assault	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0						

2018 Hate Crime		Ra	ice			Reli	gion		Sex	ual O	rienta	tion		Gen	der	
Reportable Offenses UGA	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
Medical Partnership																
Murder / Non-negligent	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
<u> </u>		_		0				0		0	0	0	0		0	
Incest	0	0	0		0	0	0		0					0		0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage /	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Vandalism of Property			Ů			Ů	Ů	Ů								<u> </u>
Demonstrately Officers	G	ender	Identi	ity		Disa	bility			Ethn	icity		Na	tiona	l Orig	in
Reportable Offenses	ОС	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

2047 Hata Crimas		Ra	ice			Reli	gion		Sex	ual Oı	rienta	tion		Gen	der	
2017 Hate Crimes Reportable Offenses UGA	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
Medical Partnership																
Murder / Non-negligent																
manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
varidatistif of Froperty																
Reportable Offenses			Identi			Disa	_			Ethn					I Orig	_
•	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Reportable Offenses	College of Nursing -	2019	2018	2017
	Athens Locations			
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Manday / Nay Nay Bass 4 Manalay abtor	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Murder / Non-Negligent Manslaughter	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Neglinent Menelevakten	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Rape	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Fondling	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Incest	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Robbery	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Robbery	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Burglary	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
motor vollidio i lidit	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Arson	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
Alson .	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0

Reportable Offenses	CON Athens Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Weapons Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Weapons Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Drug Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Drug Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Liquor Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Arrests:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Liquor Law Violations	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
> Disciplinary Referrals:	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
Reportable VAWA Offenses	Locations	2019	2018	2017
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Dating Violence	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Domestic Violence	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	0	0
	On-Campus Property	0	0	0
Stalking	Residential Facilities	0	0	0
	Non-Campus Property	0	0	0
	Public Property	0	1	0
Unfounded Crimes		2019	2018	2017
Total Unfounded Crimes		0	0	0

The total number of Unfounded Crimes includes all Clery Act reportable offenses, hate crimes, arrests or disciplinary action referrals for weapons, drug or liquor law violations, and domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking incidents that have been unfounded. This category shows those crimes that occurred On-Campus, in On-Campus Student Residential Facilities, on or in Non-Campus property or buildings, and on Public Property that were unfounded.

2019 Hate Crime		Ra	ice			Relig	gion		Sex	ual Oı	ienta	tion		Gen	der	
Reportable Offenses	ОС	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
College of Nursing-Athens																
Murder / Non-negligent	_	_	_	_	_	0	_	_	_	_	0	_	_	_	_	_
manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage /	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Vandalism of Property																
Reportable Offenses	G		Identi	ity		Disa	bility			Ethn	icity		Na	<mark>itiona</mark>	l Orig	
•	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0															_
	U	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling Incest						_			_		_		_			
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest Statutory Rape	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0 0	0 0	0 0
Incest Statutory Rape Robbery	0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0
Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0
Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0									
Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0						
Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft Arson	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0						
Incest Statutory Rape Robbery Aggravated Assault Burglary Motor Vehicle Theft Arson Simple Assault	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0														

2018 Hate Crimes		Ra	ice			Reli	gion		Sex	ual Oı	rienta	tion		Gen	der	
Reportable Offenses	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
College of Nursing-Athens																
Murder / Non-negligent																
manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage /	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Vandalism of Property		_								_	_		_	_		
Reportable Offenses	G	ender	Ident			Disa	bility			Ethn	icity		Na	tiona	l Orig	in
•	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP	OC	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

2047 Hata Crimas	Race				Religion				Sexual Orientation				Gender			
2017 Hate Crimes Reportable Offenses	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
College of Nursing-Athens																
3																
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Reportable Offenses	Gender Identity			Disability				Ethnicity				National Origin				
-	00	RF	NC	PP	00	RF	NC	PP	00	RF	NC	PP	ОС	RF	NC	PP
Murder / Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction / Damage / Vandalism of Property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0